v 2015-16

ANNUAL REPORT %

-

y of the source document on www.hkecic. com.

i







Contents

04

29

About ECIC

ECIC Profile

ECIC Ordinance

Mission Statement

Products and Services

Banker, Auditor and Legal Advisor

09

Chairman’s Foreword

2

Advisory Board and the Sub-Committees

27

Five Years at a Glance

Business Operations and Organisation
Organisational Chart

Quality Policy

Corporate Governance

Corporate Culture and Human Resources

e Corporate Culture

® Human Resources

e Training and Development

In Pursuit of Quality

e Corporate Social Responsibility

40

The Year in Review
Performance Pledge Report
The Year in Pictures
Operational Review Highlight
Financial Review

Financial Statements



Highlights of the Year
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KICK-STARTED THE CELEBRATION ACTIVITIES OF
50TH ANNIVERSARY OF THE CORPORATION

The Corporation conducted a 50th Anniversary
logo selection and slogan competition

participated by staff. Selected a new slogan
and 50th Anniversary logo:
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and organised the first policyholder networking luncheon in
March 2016
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A statutory
organisation of the
Hong Kong SAR
Government

Number of staff stood
at 122
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History of
50 years

ECIC
PROFILE

Statutory maximum
liability standing at
$40 billion

Member of the
International Union of
Credit & Investment
Insurers (the Berne
Union) and its informal
Regional Cooperation
Group
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ECIC ORDINANCE

The Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation was established in 1966 under the
Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation Ordinance (Chapter 1115). It was created
by statute with the aim of encouraging and supporting export trade by providing Hong
Kong exporters with insurance protection against non-payment risks arising from
commercial and political events. Its contingent liability under contracts of insurance is
guaranteed by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, with the
statutory maximum liability currently standing at $40 billion. The Corporation is required to
operate in accordance with the requirements laid down in the Hong Kong Export Credit
Insurance Corporation Ordinance, and to pursue a policy directed towards securing
revenue sufficient to meet all expenditure properly chargeable to its revenue account.

MISSION STATEMENT

To encourage and support

THE EXPORT TRADE

through the provision of

PROFESSIONAL AND
CUSTOMER-ORIENTED SERVICES.
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PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

The Corporation provides a wide range of insurance facilities to Hong Kong exporters of
goods and services who trade with overseas buyers and clients on credit terms, usually for
credit periods of up to 180 days. Its services cover not only exports and re-exports from
Hong Kong, but also offshore shipments transported directly from suppliers to buyers
without passing through Hong Kong. The Corporation’s insurance facilities protect
exporters against non-payment risks arising from commercial and political events, at both
pre- and post-shipment stages. The maximum indemnity provided is 90% of the credit
limit.

Export Credit Insurance

Of the wide range of cover facilities the Corporation offers, the most popular is the
“"Comprehensive Cover Policy”, which insures post-shipment risks and applies to exports
and re-exports of goods from Hong Kong and to offshore shipments of goods
manufactured or sourced from outside Hong Kong, for credit periods of up to 180 days.
The Corporation also offers a “Contract Cover Policy” which insures pre- and post-
shipment risks that may arise from the date of contract, and a “Small Business Policy”
which is tailored specifically to the needs of SMEs. Apart from these policies, the
Corporation also offers tailor-made insurance facilities catering to the unique needs of
exporters, such as the extended cover on sales by overseas/Mainland subsidiaries. For
medium- and long-term cover for exports of capital goods, credit periods can be up to five
years or longer.

In addition, the Corporation provides comprehensive protection to various service sectors
for the services they render to overseas clients on credit terms. Different kinds of policies
are designed to meet the requirements of specific service sectors. Cover usually starts on
the date on which services begin to be rendered. These insurance policies include aircraft
services, freight forwarding services, hotel services, construction professional services,
testing and inspection services, and travel agent services, etc.
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Risk Assessment and Monitoring

Apart from offering insurance cover, the Corporation provides exporters with risk
assessment and monitoring support whereby it advises exporters on the prudent level of
credit they may grant to their buyers. The Corporation maintains a worldwide database of
buyers whose information is regularly updated from various sources including an
international network of credit information agencies, and whose creditworthiness is
regularly monitored by its underwriters.

Collateral for Discounting Export Bills

The Corporation’s insurance policies are generally accepted by the banking community as
collateral for the discounting of export bills. Under this arrangement, the protection
accorded to a policyholder by the Corporation’s cover is extended to the policyholder’s
bank by a Letter of Authority, which authorises claims to be paid directly to the bank. Such
an arrangement can be instrumental in helping policyholders obtain the banking facilities
they need. In addition, by using the Corporation’s online platform, EC-link, banks holding
Letters of Authority can check their customers’ shipment records and the updated terms
and conditions of the insurance cover at any time. This facility is widely used by banks as
part of their credit management processes.

Providing Assistance in Loss Minimisation

With an international network of lawyers and debt collectors available to call on, the
Corporation assists policyholders in solving payment problems and advises them on
practical ways of minimising losses when they trade. It shares all approved recovery
expenses in the same proportion in which the original loss was shared between the
policyholder and the Corporation.

BANKER, AUDITOR AND LEGAL ADVISOR
The Corporation’s banker, auditor and legal advisor in 2015-16 were respectively:
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

KPMG
Mayer Brown JSM
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Chairman’s Foreword

SLOW AND UNBALANCED GROWTH

The world’s major economies have recovered sluggishly in 2015-16. The US was the only
exception in showing signs of growth, while the Eurozone and Japan are still to emerge
from their economic predicament. Financial markets were generally volatile and monetary
policies were divergent. Wide differences were observed in the performances of emerging
economies. While Mainland China and India sustained rather good growth rates, resource-
exporting countries such as Russia and Brazil stepped into recession, while South Africa hit
rock bottom.

With favourable economic indicators and a declining unemployment rate, the US ended
the hyper-stimulatory monetary policies that have been in place since the financial tsunami,
setting interest rates back on their normal track. The Eurozone economy initially seemed
to take a turn to the bright side, but geopolitical incidents such as the Ukraine crisis and
terrorist attacks in France affected growth. Economically burdened by heavy debts over a
protracted period, weaker member states in the region continued to face structural
problems such as unsustainable public finances. Heightened geopolitical tensions in
Eastern Europe and the Middle East, together with the influx of refugees and migrants, are
all casting shadows over the future of the Eurozone.

10



Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation Annual Report 2015 - 16

Chairman’s Foreword

Amidst external downward pressure and the challenge of structural adjustments, Mainland
China still managed to secure growth of 6.9% in 2015. This rather decent performance
came just in time to offset the effect of declining external trade as a result of weak global
demand. Japan's performance has been disparate in the face of subdued domestic
demand and the persistent threat of deflation. The stimulation of export growth created
by the depreciated Japanese Yen seemed to have faded. As the economic momentum
weakened, the Bank of Japan unexpectedly rolled out a negative interest rate policy, but
whether this will be successful in boosting the economy remains uncertain.

Growth was lacklustre in the majority of emerging markets last year, with Russia and Brazil
falling into recession. While Asian emerging markets remain relatively resilient in terms of
performance, weak global trade has caused declines in both production activities and
exports. The highly fluctuating global currency environment has triggered sharp
adjustments in the stock market. Along with large outflows of funds, the dramatic
devaluation of currencies and plunging commodity prices, economic growth in Asian
emerging markets has been generally under pressure.

The external trade environment deteriorated in 2015 as the global economy slackened,
with the slowest growth recorded since the global financial crisis. Global financial markets
also experienced heightened volatility, with the normalisation of interest rates in the US
and uncertainties deriving from the divergent monetary policies of the major central banks
— all of which further impaired international trade activities. Inadequate global demand
had serious effects on exports across Asia, and Hong Kong could hardly remain
unaffected.
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CREATIVE DESIGNS EARNING HONG KONG COMPANIES
HIGH VALUE ORDERS

With the global economy showing little sign of growth and overseas buyers dominating
the market, inexpensive quality goods are no longer a strong enough winning ticket. Hong
Kong enterprises need to make breakthroughs in traditional business models, and improve
their products using new technologies and new designs that combine creativity with the
speed-to-online platform and eco-friendly features. Active steps should also be taken to
gain high value orders. As the focus of global economic activities is shifting east, the Belt
and Road Initiative that covers more than 60 economies (including the numerous emerging
markets of Southeast Asia, Central Asia, Central Europe, Eastern Europe and Africa) will
bring enormous business potential and opportunities in terms of the construction of
infrastructure, deepening of financial connections, expansion of trade and integration of
people. Hong Kong has the necessary conditions to gain a share in funding, to be a
financial management platform, a trade and logistics centre and an investment
springboard. New openings can be identified through the expansion of these markets with
promising growth potential.

ECONOMIC UNCERTAINTIES AHEAD

Looking ahead to the coming year, the pace of growth is expected to remain slow and
unbalanced. Downward risks are evident and it may be unrealistic to hope for a significant
rebound in global trade. In terms of advanced economies, the market generally expects
moderate growth in the US, although we are yet to see whether its economy can withstand
the effect of the Federal Reserve's interest rate normalisation policy. Recovery in the
Eurozone and Japan is expected to be weak.

Amongst the major emerging markets, the prospects for Russia and Brazil remain gloomy.
Mainland China and other Asian emerging markets may appear more stable, but their
pace of expansion is expected to decelerate to a certain extent. Emerging markets with
less favourable economic fundamentals are considered to be more vulnerable to capital
outflow and currency devaluation.
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Tensions in the financial market are also reflected in commodity and fuel prices. Economies
that depend on commodity exports will be affected, with their growth prospects and
public finances pressured. Geopolitical tensions in different parts of the world also
continue to cause major concerns. Unfavourable conditions are expected to persist in the
external environment and the global demand will stay lacklustre; along with the strong US
dollar against most other currencies, Hong Kong's commodity export market is surrounded
by unfavourable factors.

CONFIDENCE IS THE KEY TO NEW DOORS

The US is the major driver of the world’s economic prospects. The four-yearly US general
election will take place in 2016, although the outcome of the election is generally expected
to have only a limited effect on the country’s monetary policies. Economic recovery is
expected to continue along the same path, and there is evidence of strong, steady growth
in domestic demand. The basics of the economy are still outperforming those of most
other major economies.

This year marks the first year of China’s “13th Five-year Plan”. Mainland China will reform
its economic structure under the “new normal”, sustaining medium- to high-speed growth.
Although growth is expected to ease over the next few years, the continuous progress of
the reform will help promote creativity-driven growth, which in turn should facilitate
economic development in the direction of high-value additions, bringing the strengths of
the market into fuller play. The abovementioned policies, together with the Belt and Road
Initiative, are all favourable for unleashing growth potential and exploiting novel business
opportunities. While the economy is only inching forward, exporters should be confident
and courageous in making breakthroughs in search of an exit.

13
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Confucius claimed that 50 is the age at which one finally understands the mandate of
heaven. The Corporation is turning 50 this year. The management and staff have upheld
the aim of encouraging and supporting Hong Kong trade over the past 50 years. Working
relentlessly, they are committed to offering professional and high-quality credit insurance
services to Hong Kong exporters, and their achievements deserve recognition. My heartfelt
gratitude goes to the hard work and dedication of the Corporation staff, which has helped
us make big strides forward. At the same time, | would like to thank all members of the
Advisory Board, the Commerce and Economic Development Bureau of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region Government, the Corporation’s reinsurers and reinsurance
broker, banks, trade and industry associations and the International Union of Credit &
Investment Insurers for their support. Last but not least, on behalf of the Corporation, |
would like to express my cordial gratitude to all of our policyholders, and particularly our
long-standing policyholders who continue to support the Corporation.

Eric Yim, JP
Chairman, Advisory Board
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The global financial market was turbulent in 2015, economic growth was flat and the
purchasing power of overseas markets was weak. Hong Kong's export performance was far
from satisfactory, registering the first drop in annual merchandise exports since the
financial tsunami, with a decline of 1.7% in real terms and a drop of 0.6% in service exports.
The RMB depreciated during the year, while the exchange rate with neighbouring
countries fell. Hong Kong's competitiveness greatly weakened because of the pegged
exchange rate. Exporters lost many orders and the business environment was difficult.

Although the US economy grew steadily and thus moved the country out of an abnormal
interest rate environment, consumption and purchasing power are still not as strong as
expected. Europe and Japan, in contrast, have yet to see favourable outcomes from their
protracted quantitative easing. With many emerging economies affected by weak
commodity prices, together with the fact that Mainland China is rolling out structural
reforms and aiming to support economic growth through stimulating domestic demand,
Hong Kong's export market will inevitably be affected.
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MEASURES TO EASE EXPORTERS FROM PRESSURES

Recognising that Hong Kong exporters are under increasing pressure from stagnated
global trade and a strong US dollar, the Corporation continued to provide supportive
measures to lessen their burden. The policy fee waiver has been extended for a further
year, until the end of December 2016. In addition, the premium discount and annual fee
waiver of the Small Business Policy tailored for SMEs was originally due to expire at the
end of February 2016. To demonstrate our continual support to SMEs and to help them
lower their operating costs and properly manage credit risks, the Corporation has decided
to make the premium discount and annual fee waiver a long-term policy, with effect from 1
March 2016.

RISKS AMID STABILITY IN THE GLOBAL ECONOMY

The global economy has been recovering slowly amidst mounting downward risks and
divergent monetary policies within developed markets. While the interest rate in the US is
now back on an upward path, and the central bank of the UK is expected to raise the
interest rate for the first time in 10 years, it is still possible that the European and Japanese
central banks will augment their quantitative easing policies. Torrential outflows of
international capital and a chaotic foreign exchange market arising out of these factors are
still expected to affect the stability of global economics and finance.

Economic growth has been decelerating in emerging markets. The fall in international
commodity prices, together with the outflow of international capital, could easily shake
politics and the financial market. As global economic growth slackens, world trade will also
stay level. Along with external uncertainties arising from geopolitical tensions, the
prospects for exports are likely to be disturbing. Luckily, Mainland China’s Belt and Road
Initiative will enliven the gloomy global economy. The Corporation will be supporting
exporters in identifying new directions through prudent risk management.
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UNINTERRUPTED INTERNATIONAL COOPERATION

The Corporation has proactively maintained close contact with the leading international
association for the export credit and investment insurance industry — the International
Union of Credit & Investment Insurers (Berne Union) — and participated in various activities
such as meetings, bilateral exchanges and training workshops worldwide. The Corporation
will continue to maintain close interaction and cooperation with regional export credit
agencies to provide better credit risk protection and exploit new business opportunities
amid the uncertain global economy. In November 2015, the Corporation held the second
Cross-strait Export Credit Insurance Seminar, in which representatives shared their
practical experiences of business development, underwriting, claims and recoveries and
corporate governance. The event further strengthened the partnership between
participants.

ENHANCING SERVICE THROUGH NEW WEBSITE FUNCTIONS

The Corporation has been constantly adding information and content to its website. Apart
from ensuring the availability of adequate and consistent information, we continue to
devote resources to upgrading system functionality and improving service quality. Various
new functions have been added to the website so that exporters can access our services
more quickly and conveniently.

18
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MAINTAINING GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Corporation is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance and
has continued its efforts to ensure an effective and efficient internal control system and
good enterprise risk management. The Corporation’s Internal Audit Unit has continued to
conduct audit reviews of a number of business processes to evaluate the effectiveness and
efficiency of the internal control system and to make recommendations for improvement,
while the Corporation’s Enterprise Risk Management Committee has continued to hold
half-yearly meetings to discuss enterprise risk management issues. With regards to
enterprise risk management, the Corporation maintains a regular review of major activities,
including the annual review of the Corporation’s self-regulatory framework to ensure its
activities are integrated with market best practices. The Corporation emphasises the
importance of staff training in corporate governance and best practices. Every staff
member is required to follow the Code of Conduct, which is kept up to date with best
practices, and staff members are assessed annually on their understanding of the Code of
Conduct. The results of the internal audit review, enterprise risk assessment and updates
in corporate governance have been reported to the Audit Committee. The Corporation
has maintained close communication with the Commerce and Economic Development
Bureau and the Advisory Board in an effort to continually maintain accountability and
transparency in corporate governance. The Corporation has also continued to maintain
close internal communication through various internal committees, management meetings,
cross-divisional sharing sessions, a suggestion box, cross-level meetings and a staff survey.

PRUDENT RESERVE POLICY

The Corporation is an advocate for the principles of a prudent reserve policy and the
maintenance of long-term financial stability. A contingency reserve, which is adjusted every
year to reflect the change in the Corporation’s business volume, is in place to cover any
unexpired risks at the end of year, pursuant to Section 12(3) of the Hong Kong Export
Credit Insurance Corporation Ordinance (Chapter 1115). Two other reserves — a non-
insurance reserve to safeguard against unfavourable operating results and a fair value
reserve to record unrealised appreciation or diminution in investments — have also been
set up. As of 31 March 2016, the Corporation’s total reserves stood at $2,141.48 million,
with an increase of $25.53 million (or 1.2%) from 31 March 2015.
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

| would like to take this opportunity to thank the Chairman and Members of the Advisory
Board, the Commerce and Economic Development Bureau of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government, our reinsurers and reinsurance broker, policyholders,
banks, trade associations, business chambers and the Berne Union for their support to the
Corporation, which has given us the ability to seamlessly serve the Hong Kong export
industry over the past 50 years, to build trustworthy brands and to drive the consistent
development of Hong Kong's export trade. Thanks to the dedication and hard work of the
entire staff, the Corporation can stay closely in step with our times and provide timely
services for the export industry.

Ralph Lai
Commissioner

13 May 2016
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Advisory Board and the Sub-Committees

Under the Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation Ordinance (Chapter 1115), the
Advisory Board is established to advise the Corporation in the conduct of its business.

Membership of the Advisory Board is made up of leaders from the finance, insurance,
trade and industry sectors, along with certain government officials. As at 31 March 2016,
the Advisory Board consisted of:

Mr Eric Yim, JP Mr Stephen Chan Mr Alex Cheung
Chairman

Mr Jimmy Poon Mr Michael Hui, MH, JP Ms Florence Chan
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1 The Principal Assistant Secretary for Commerce and Economic Development (Commerce and Industry),
with the Assistant Secretary for Commerce and Economic Development (Commerce and Industry) as an alternate member

With effect from 24 June 2015, Ms Vivian Ko replaced Mrs Candy Yeung as representative
2 Executive Director, Hong Kong Trade Development Council or his representative (ex-officio)

3 Commissioner of Insurance or his representative (ex-officio)

Dr Kelvin Leung Ms Agnes Choi, MH Mrs Katherine Ngan, MH, JP

Ms Vivian Ko' Mr Raymond Yip? Mr Ros Lam, JP?
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Mr Willy Lin, SBS, JP, the ex-Chairman, retired from the Advisory Board on 30 June 2015.

From left: Ex-Chairman Willy Lin, SBS, JP and Commissioner Ralph Lai
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Two sub-committees, namely the Audit Committee and the Investment Committee,
support the Advisory Board.

The Audit Committee advises the Corporation on internal controls and corporate
governance issues and considers the Corporation’s auditing matters and reports to the
Advisory Board. As at 31 March 2016, the Audit Committee consisted of:

Mr Jimmy Poon Mr Stephen Chan
Chairman

Ms Florence Chan Ms Vivian Ko

With effect from 24 June 2015, Ms Vivian Ko replaced Mrs Candy Yeung as member of the
Audit Committee.
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The Investment Committee advises the Corporation in the conduct of its investment
matters and reports to the Advisory Board. As at 31 March 2016, the Investment
Committee consisted of:

Mr Stephen Chan Mr Alex Cheung Mr Michael Hui, MH, JP
Chairman

Ms Florence Chan Dr Kelvin Leung
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As at 31 March 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
No. of policies 3,447 3,600 3,543 3,504 3,276

Maximum liability of policies 35,594 33,730 33,355 31,274 25,374

Insured business 110,484 111,570 102,004 96,496 87,714
Gross premium income

(Revenue) 257.44 283.56 277.46 285.32 276.00
Gross claims 76.35 57.54 45.75 51.22 65.65
Gross recoveries 4.92 6.84 9.72 10.48 7.52
Operating expenses 102.07 98.24 90.09 83.34 78.32
Underwriting income 56.55 96.93 108.16 128.22 101.56
Investment income 3.59 56.46 58.77 66.46 14.45
Profit 60.14 153.39 166.93 194.68 116.01
Net assets 2,141.48 211595 1,957.83 1,799.67  1,623.49
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ORGANISATIONAL CHART

ADVISORY BOARD
AUDIT COMMITTEE

General Manager

e Internal control system * New business acquisition e Buyer underwriting

e Internal audit and compliance ® Business retention e Country underwriting
e Account servicing e Credit information management
* Media relations ® Reinsurance
e External relations ® International relations

e Corporate communication
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Commissioner

Deputy
General Manager

Claims & Information Technology Corporate
Recoveries Division Divisions Management Division
e Claims and recoveries * |T system development ® Human resources management
® |T system maintenance e Office management and

administration
e Finance and account

e Quality management
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Marketing Divisions, Underwriting Divisions and Claims and Recoveries Division handle the
Corporation’s core business operations. The Marketing Divisions handle business
acquisition, business retention, and public relations activities. The Underwriting Divisions
are responsible for risk assessment and monitoring, reinsurance and international relations
matters. The Claims and Recoveries Division handles activities relating to loss minimisation,
claims processing and debt recovery.

The powers, functions and duties of the Corporation may be exercised or performed in its
name and on its behalf by the Commissioner, who is appointed by the Chief Executive of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

As at 31 March 2016, the total number of the Corporation’s staff stood at 122 (31 March
2015: 122). The senior management consisted of:

Ralph Lai Cynthia Chin Walter Tse
Commissioner General Manager Deputy General Manager

Amy Wai lyria Fan
Deputy General Manager Deputy General Manager
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QUALITY POLICY

We are committed to providing professional and customer-
oriented services in support of Hong Kong’s export trade, by
upholding the principles of Total Quality Management and by
fulfilling all our legal and customer requirements.

We encourage the concerted participation of staff at all levels to
ensure continuous improvement in service delivery of the
highest quality, and to establish a reputation amongst our
customers, Hong Kong's exporters, for excellence, value for
money and constant innovation.

The comprehensive quality objectives underlying all our
activities are regularly reviewed and improved upon, based on
the current and likely future needs of customers for a range of
insurance cover and a high standard of service.

Our quality policy takes the form of a quality management
system developed on the basis of ISO 9001:2008 requirements.
Implementing this is the responsibility of each staff member.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation (ECIC) is a statutory organisation
governed by the Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation Ordinance (Chapter
1115) (ECIC Ordinance). The Corporation is committed to high standards of corporate
governance and stresses integrity, accountability and transparency in its corporate
governance framework.

Advisory Board

Under the ECIC Ordinance, the Advisory Board is established to advise the Corporation in
the conduct of its business. The Advisory Board currently consists of nine members,
including the chairman, from various industries, and three members respectively from the
Commerce and Economic Development Bureau (CEDB), Hong Kong Trade Development
Council and the Office of the Commissioner of Insurance. The Advisory Board maintains its
rules and procedures, and holds meetings three times a year to discuss and advise the
Corporation in the conduct of business, including the annual budget, corporate and
strategic plans, performance evaluations, remuneration adjustments, and matters reported
from the Investment Committee and the Audit Committee etc.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is established under the Advisory Board to advise the Corporation
on internal controls and corporate governance issues and considers the Corporation’s
auditing matters in accordance with its Terms of Reference. The Audit Committee currently
comprises a chairman and three members from the Advisory Board. Following the rules
and procedures, the Audit Committee holds meetings three times a year to advise the
Corporation on internal controls and corporate governance issues and consider the
Corporation’s auditing matters, and reports to the Advisory Board.
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The Corporation maintains an Internal Audit Unit to evaluate the effectiveness and
efficiency of the internal control system. The Internal Audit Unit of the Corporation reports
directly to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee reviews and endorses the internal
audit plan to ensure adequate audit coverage of operations, and reviews major findings,
recommendations and the progress in the implementation of the recommendations arising
from the internal audit and other relevant authorities in the meetings. The Audit
Committee also meets the external auditor every year to discuss any areas of concern and
matters arising from the audit of the financial statements. Under the whistle-blowing
mechanism of the Corporation, any staff member can directly report instances of violation
of the Code of Conduct or applicable laws and regulations to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee or through the Internal Audit Unit.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee is established under the Advisory Board to advise the
Corporation in the conduct of investment matters in accordance with its Terms of
Reference. The Investment Committee currently comprises a chairman and four members
from the Advisory Board. Following the rules and procedures, the Investment Committee
holds meetings four times a year to advise the Corporation in the conduct of investment
matters, and reports to the Advisory Board.

Communication with the CEDB

The Corporation maintains frequent two-way communication with the policy bureau, the
CEDB, to ensure a high level of transparency. Besides making routine reports on financial
and corporate matters, the Corporation has also consulted the CEDB from time to time on
new measures and services in relation to the discharge of its public mission, and has
sought approval for the annual budget and the corporate plan.

35



Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation Annual Report 2015 - 16

Business Operations and Organisation

Internal Control and Risk Management
The Corporation strives to maintain a sound internal control system and risk management.

Internal Control

The Corporation devotes effort to maintaining an effective and efficient internal control
system. It maintains a well-established organisational structure with clearly defined roles,
responsibilities and authority, and a set of manuals, procedures and guidelines. The
management continually monitors compliance with the established policies and
procedures and integrates market best practices into the manuals, procedures and
guidelines. The Corporation also maintains various internal committees to facilitate
discussion and decision making of management, and reviews key areas of business to
ensure established policies and procedures are followed in daily operations and proper
approval is obtained.

Enterprise Risk Management

The Corporation sets as its target the maintenance of effective enterprise risk
management. Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Committee was formed to formulate
and implement its risk management policies. The ERM Committee meets twice a year to
discuss the progress and results of the Corporation’s enterprise risk management. The
residual risks of the Corporation have been assessed to be either low or medium. The
Corporation regularly conducts risk assessment to ensure the residual risk is maintained at
a tolerable level.

Confidentiality and Code of Conduct

The staff member is required to take an oath of secrecy under section 31 of the ECIC
Ordinance to safeguard the confidentiality and to follow the Corporation’s Code of
Conduct. Every staff member is assessed annually on their understanding of the Code of
Conduct, which encourages them to constantly adopt these best practices.
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CORPORATE CULTURE AND HUMAN RESOURCES

Corporate Culture

The Corporation’s ongoing commitment to its long-established core principles of total
quality management, professionalism, accountability, honesty and integrity, proactivity,
openness and transparency shapes its corporate culture, enabling it to better serve Hong
Kong exporters with a consistently high service standard. The Corporation’s culture helps
achieve continuous improvements in service quality and productivity, transparency in
people management, communication and proactivity. Its management philosophy is to
create a working environment that fosters staff members’ engagement with and
commitment to the Corporation’s long-term success, and allows them to fully develop
their ideas on innovation and excellence. During the year, the Corporation continued to
arrange a diverse range of staff training opportunities, both external and internal, local and
international, that built expertise, refreshed industry knowledge and revitalised their
working practices. It also continued to provide staff with opportunities to offer suggestions
for improving the service quality and productivity of the Corporation through the standing
suggestion box, the annual staff suggestion campaign and the annual staff survey on
aspects such as transparency, accountability and communication.

Human Resources

The staff's commitment and expertise, and a people-based corporate culture, are the
foundation of the Corporation’s success in serving the export community. Staff training
and development is one of the top priorities of the Corporation’s management
philosophy. As at 31 March 2016, the Corporation employed 122 staff members, the same
number as the previous year.
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Training and Development

Pursuing a culture of total quality management
with continuous improvements in operational
efficiency and service quality, the Corporation
continued its commitment to and investment in
staff training and development.

Based on the input from both management and

staff, the Corporation arranged a total of 65 : 4
training courses in 2015-16. These included a Functional training on Contracts (Rights of
wide variety of subjects covering both Third Parties) Ordinance

management development and functional

training courses and workshops catering to the

specific job requirements or career development needs of staff members at various levels.
Management training programmes included crisis management, managerial decision
making, leadership and change management; and functional training covered international
trade, contract laws, mediation, debt collection, project management, and ISO quality
standards. In addition to local training, the Corporation arranged for some staff members
to attend overseas conferences and workshops to widen their international exposure. To
promote internal knowledge sharing and exchanges, the Corporation arranged a series of
cross-division sharing sessions during the year.

In Pursuit of Quality

The Corporation is certified to the ISO 9001:2008 quality management system standard.
Throughout the year, it seeks to achieve continual improvements in its quality
management system and to maintain excellent standards of service through various quality
assurance activities.

On compliance checks, the Corporation completed two external quality audits and an
annual internal quality audit in 2015-16 with satisfactory results and with no non-
conformance found, thus proving its efforts in consistently complying with the quality
standards. Moreover, it continued to regularly collect feedback and suggestions on service
enhancement from its clients through various channels. It also measured and monitored
the cycle time of core processes and various performance pledges regularly to ensure that
quality objectives were consistently met.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

The Corporation is committed to fulfilling its corporate social responsibility by contributing
to communities through charities and voluntary activities. During the year, it participated in
various fundraising events including the Community Chest Dress Casual Day, Orbis Mid-
Autumn Charity Sale and Children’s Thalassaemia Foundation Flag Day to support those
in need. The Corporation also took part in other benevolent activities, including blood
donation, the donation of used clothes, computers and peripherals and office decor
paintings to charitable organisations. The enthusiasm and commitment demonstrated by
staff members at the above events were encouraging.

In support of the Government’'s Web Accessibility Campaign to facilitate access to online
information and services by people with disabilities, the Corporation once again
participated in the Web Accessibility Recognition Scheme co-organised by the Office of
the Government Chief Information Officer and the Equal Opportunities Commission.
During the year, the Corporation’s website has continued to meet the requirements of the
scheme'’s Silver Award, exhibiting the Corporation’s enduring commitment to contributing
to a caring and inclusive society.

To implement its environmental protection policy, the Corporation continued to take steps
to implement the reduction, reuse and recycling of resources, where appropriate, during
the year. It also continued to follow a green procurement policy for office equipment and
machinery where practicable, to set targets for
resource consumption and to promote resource
conservation in daily operations. The concerted
efforts of the staff, backed by e-commerce
initiatives, have helped build a green office.

ECIC participated in the Community Chest
Dress Casual Day

39



Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation Annual Report 2015 - 16

The Year in Review

40



Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation Annual Report 2015 - 16

The Year in Review

PERFORMANCE PLEDGE REPORT
For the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Target % completed
turnaround % completed within target
time (clear before turnaround
Service/application working days) mid-point time
(@) Processing of credit limit applications
and issue of credit limits
(i) for credit limit applications of 3 81.2 100.0
$1,000,000 or below
(ii) for credit limit applications of 4 71.7 100.0
above $1,000,000
(b) Processing of proposals and issue of 2 99.4 100.0
quotations
(c) Replying to requests for measures to 2 100.0 100.0
prevent or minimise loss
(d) Settlement of claims
(i) for claims payment of 5 74.1 100.0
below $500,000
(i) for claims payment of 7 70.4 100.0
$500,000 or above
(e) Apportioning of recoveries and 3 97.3 100.0

recovery expenses
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THE YEAR IN PICTURES
Supporting SMEs

The Corporation indomitably assists SMEs with participation in a number of marketing
activities targeting SMEs during the year.

The Corporation participated in the
World SME Expo from 3 to 5 December
2015. Free consultations on credit risks
and export credit insurance were
provided to exporters.

»<
<4 »
B
[ ETE L2
The Corporation was awarded the “2015
Outstanding Import & Export Industry
Partner Award” by the Hong Kong
WOE TR Chinese Importers’ & Exporters’
Association on 14 September 2015. The
Award recognised the Corporation’s
contribution to and support for the
operation and development of the

trade industry.

Hong Ke
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bR ENRESE

Hong Kong Export Credit
Insurance Corporation
BHEHOBSMARRBREB

The Corporation received the “"Best SME's
Partner Award” from the Hong Kong General
Chamber of Small and Medium Business on 22
June 2015, for its support and assistance given to
SME development. This was the fourth time it
had received the award.

Continuing Support to Exporters

The Corporation also supports exporters by offering free consultation on credit risks at
various trade fairs.

CUN-013

Hong Kong Export
Credit Insurance C rporation

J

’J‘}' LR

siivh il

Hong Kong Gifts & Premium Fair from 27 to 30
April 2015.

Hong Kong Electronics Fair (Autumn Edition) from 13 to 16
October 2015.
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Hong Kong Toys & Games Fair from 11 to
14 January 2016.
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The Corporation took part in
the 14th “Joint Dinner for
Hong Kong PRD Businesses”
held in Jiangmen on 4
December 2015 to exchange
views on the industry.
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Organising Seminars

The Corporation organised and co-organised seminars that keep exporters abreast of
updated economic and market developments.

Hong <port Credit = {2
Insurai orporation @ :

SBHOGEHRKREB ECIC 50th Anniversary

)/

The Corporation organised a seminar on the "Global
Economic Prospects and Hong Kong’s Export Outlook
2016"on 5 January 2016. Distinguished guest speakers shared
their insights and views on the global economic and regional

outlook, trends in global trade pacts and brand development
and management.

The Corporation co-organised a seminar on
"US and Europe Market Prospects” with
Trade and Industry Department Support
and Consultation Centre for SMEs
(SUCCESS) on 28 August 2015. Experts were
invited to the seminar to analyse the latest
economic situation in the US and Europe.
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Strengthening International Relations

The Corporation has proactively maintained close relations with the leading international
association for the export credit and investment insurance industry — the International
Union of Credit & Investment Insurers (Berne Union) — and participated in various
activities.

= > e

The Corporation hosted the

2015 ¢ = b i 15 H D B WEt &

2015%E11)124-25H &ilt
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“Cross-strait Export Credit
Insurance Seminar 2015” in Hong
Kong on 23 to 25 November 2015.

Over 50 delegates from China

Export & Credit Insurance

Corporation (SINOSURE), Taipei

K M‘ on ”\ y Export-Import Bank of China

. (TEBC) and the Corporation

"“ .‘. “"t participated in the seminar and

- ; shared their knowledge and
experience.

The Corporation attended the Berne Union Annual
General Meeting held in Shanghai, China, from 2 to 5
November 2015.

union
club

PRING MEETINGS
The Corporation attended the Berne Union Spring
Meeting held in Florence, Italy, from 11 to 15 May
2015.
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Celebrating the Golden Jubilee

The Corporation will be celebrating its 50th anniversary in 2016. To mark this momentous
occasion, the Corporation will conduct a series of events throughout the year.

The Corporation held the first
policyholder networking luncheon
on 14 March 2016, kicking off the
celebration of the Corporation’s
50th anniversary. Chairman of the
ECIC Advisory Board Eric Yim
shared his views on how design
thinking could be embedded in
business with policyholders.

14 March 2016

Eric C Yim

Chairman, Advisory Boarg
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW HIGHLIGHT

Free Buyer Credit Assessment Service

e Further extended the free buyer credit assessment service to support exporters

e Continued to offer free buyer credit checks for exporters participating in Business
Missions to key emerging markets and major local trade fairs events of the HKTDC

e Extended the free credit check service to grantees of the Enterprise Support
Programme under the Dedicated Fund on Branding, Upgrading and Domestic Sales
to help exporters explore and develop the mainland market

New version of Policy
e Completed the review and revision of the wording of various policies to provide
greater clarity and flexibility without changing the scope and extent of the coverage

The ‘Belt and Road’ Initiative
® Provided support for HKTDC's Belt and Road Portal by contributing monthly articles
on relevant countries
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Claims and Recoveries

e Enhanced integration of claims and recovery processing systems to improve
operational efficiency and control

e Restructured the claims division to achieve specialisation and improve operational
efficiency for small claims

Information Technology

e Enhanced application systems and developed new systems for marketing, risk
underwriting, claims and recoveries, and corporate management functions to improve
operational efficiency

e Strengthened the network infrastructure of the server room at the production site and
the backup computer centre to improve security management and network stability

Office Management

e Completed the office renovation and the redesigned office officially opened on
2 February 2016
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial Results

The Corporation’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2016 was $60.14 million, $93.25
million (or 60.8%) less than the previous year's figure of $153.39 million. The profit consists
of an underwriting income of $56.55 million (compared with an underwriting income of
$96.93 million in the previous year) and an investment income of $3.59 million (compared
with an investment income of $56.46 million in the previous year).

Gross Premium Income (Revenue)

Revenue decreased by $26.12 million (or 9.2%) to $257.44 million over the previous year.
The negative growth of revenue is attributable to a decrease in insured business. Pricing
pressure from policyholders also continued under the prevailing tough trading conditions.

Insured Business

In the past year, a further slowdown in emerging market economies weighed on trade and
global economic activity, while subdued investment and productivity growth hindered the
speed of recovery in advanced economies. In the tough market conditions and with weak
external demand, the Corporation reported insured business of $110,484 million,
representing a decrease of $1,086 million (or 1.0%) over the previous year.
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Insured Business by Major Markets

Mainland
CP?il:aan Switzerland

18.9% 2.8%

$20,896mn $3,074mn

United States Germany

34.8% 3.6%

$38,486mn , $3,920mn
United Other

Kingdom Markets
8.8% 31.1%

$9,746mn $34,362mn

Total: $110,484mn

The US continued to be the Corporation’s largest insured market, accounting for 34.8% of
its total insured business. Mainland China ranked second with a 18.9% share and the UK
came third with a 8.8% share, followed by Germany and Switzerland.
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Insured Business by Major Products

Electronics, textiles and clothing were the Corporation’s two largest insured products,
accounting for 40.3% of the total insured business. Electrical appliances came third with a
share of 13.5%, followed by toys and chemical products.

52

Electronics

$23,129mn
20.9%

$21,434mn

S¥ Textiles & Clothing
I 19.4%

Electrical Appliances

CQL&.) $14,898mn

13.5%

Toys
’* $8,622mn
’ 7.8%

Chemical Products

$2,986mn
2.7%

$39,415mn
456l 35 79,

Total: $110,484mn

‘I | I|| Other Products



Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation Annual Report 2015 - 16

The Year in Review

Claims and Recoveries
Gross claims in 2015-16 amounted to $76.35 million. The breakdown is as follows:

2015-16 2014-15 Increase

($ million) ($ million) ($ million)

Reported claims 35.09 22.71 12.38

Provision for claims not yet intimated 59.00 50.00 9.00

Gross claims expenditure 94.09 72.71 21.38
Less: Write-back of provisions for

claims no longer required 17.74 15.17 2.57

Gross claims 76.35 57.54 18.81

Gross claims of $76.35 million for 2015-16 represented an increase of $18.81 million (or
32.7%) from the previous year's $57.54 million. Reported claims of $35.09 million increased
by $12.38 million (or 54.5%) from $22.71 million in 2014-15. The provision for claims not yet
intimated of $59.00 million was an increase of $9.00 million (or 18.0%) from the previous
year of $50.00 million. Total provision of $17.74 million reserved in previous years was no
longer required and was written back in 2015-16, representing an increase of $2.57 million
(or 16.9%) from $15.17 million in 2014-15.
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Breakdown of Reported Claims
Within the gross claims of $76.35 million, reported claims amounted to $35.09 million, an
increase of $12.38 million (or 54.5%) from 2014-15. The breakdown is as follows:

Increase/

2015-16 2014-15 (decrease)

($ million) ($ million) ($ million)

(@) Claims paid 13.99 14.90 0.91)
(b) Provision for claims intimated 21.10 7.81 13.29
Reported claims 35.09 22.71 12.38

Total claims paid of $13.99 million was a decrease of $0.91 million (or 6.1%) from
$14.90 million in 2014-15. Of this amount, claims paid for shipments made in 2015-16
amounted to $13.98 million. The balance of $0.01 million was claims payment for cases
from earlier underwriting years.

Provision for claims intimated was made for cases reported during the year but which
remained outstanding as at the end of the financial year. The provision for claims intimated
of $21.10 million represented an increase of $13.29 million (or 170.2%) from the previous
year's provision of $7.81 million.
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Reported Claims by Major Markets

Other Markets
23.7%
$8.31Tmn

United States

32.4%
$11.39mn

South Africa
6.1%
$2.13mn

Australia

23.5%
$8.24mn

Malaysia

6.8%
$2.38mn

Hong Kong*
7.5%

$2.64mn

Total: $35.09mn

* The Corporation covers sales to buying offices or exporters in Hong Kong whose goods are intended for export to the overseas

parent company or buyers.

The US accounted for 32.4% of reported claims (2014-15: 28.5%) with three insolvency,
eight default and one repudiation cases. Australia was second, accounting for 23.5% of
reported claims (2014-15: 2.7%) with three insolvency and one default cases. Hong Kong
was third, accounting for 7.5% (2014-15: 17.9%) with two insolvency and ten default cases.
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Reported Claims by Major Products

Electrical Appliances

Ul o
oy 27.9%

Plastic articles
' $7.80mn
22.2%

S¥ Textiles & Clothing
Ii $6.06mn

17.3%

Electronics

$3.38mn
9.6%

Footwear
;’1 $1.52mn
=2 449

$6.53mn

I | II| Other Products
‘123456 1 8.6%

Total: $35.09mn

Electrical appliances topped the list, accounting for 27.9% of reported claims (2014-15:
1.6%) with five insolvency and one default cases. Plastic articles was second, accounting for
22.2% of reported claims (2014-15: 6.0%) with one insolvency and five default cases.
Textiles and clothing was third at 17.3% (2014-15: 9.9%), with three insolvency, six default
and one repudiation cases.
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Reported Claims by Event of Loss

Insolvency 21.67 61.8
Default 12.70 36.2
Repudiation 0.72 2.0
Total 35.09 100.0

In terms of event of loss, insolvency accounted for 61.8% of reported claims (2014-15:
36.7%). Default was second, accounting for 36.2% (2014-15: 60.1%), followed by repudiation
at 2.0% (2014-15: 3.2%).

Provision for Claims Not Yet Intimated

As at 31 March 2016, risk had not expired on some insurable shipments, which still have
the potential to turn into claims casualties. The Corporation makes provision for claims not
yet intimated to cater for these unexpired claims liabilities. For 2015-16, a sum of
$59.00 million has been set aside with regard to the estimated aggregate amount of
outstanding shipments that were at risk as at 31 March 2016. This represents an increase of
$9.00 million (or 18.0%) from the previous year of $50.00 million.

The provision is calculated according to a formula that applies the historical average ratio
of claims not yet intimated to the estimated amount of outstanding shipments that were at
risk as at the financial year-end. Reference has also been made to other actuarial methods
such as the Bornhuetter-Ferguson technique. This provision is normally kept open for two
accounting years, with any unutilised portion written back at the end of the second year.
Details of the movement of the claims provision are set out in note 13 of the audited
financial statements, Provision for Claims.
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Write-back of Claims Provisions
A sum of $17.74 million relating to provision for claims no longer required was written

back. This amount is made up of the following:

Increase/

2015-16 2014-15 (decrease)

Write-back of prior year provisions ($ million) ($ million) ($ million)
(@) Provision for claims intimated 1.21 6.66 (5.45)
(b) Provision for claims not yet intimated 16.53 8.51 8.02
Total write-back 17.74 15.17 2.57

In item (a) above, a sum of $1.21 million was written back. With the help of our worldwide
network of debt collectors, some policyholders minimised their losses and recovered much
of the debt owed to them, receiving either full or partial payments from buyers. The
specific provisions were therefore no longer required, and were written back.

In item (b) above, a sum of $16.53 million in provision for claims not yet intimated was no
longer required and was written back. This sum comprised $7.88 million for 2013-14 and
$8.65 million for 2014-15, which the Corporation reserved to cover potential claims
liabilities for each of these underwriting years. However, the amount of claims payments
for these two years fell short of expectations. After the write-back, a balance of
$2.80 million in provision for claims not yet intimated will be carried forward to 201617 to
meet potential claims liabilities for cases for 2014-15.

Recoveries

Gross recoveries in 2015-16 amounted to $4.92 million, down $1.92 million (or 28.1%) from
the amount of $6.84 million collected in 2014-15. In terms of markets, the US headed the
list with the receipt of $2.32 million. Mainland China was second with $1.43 million,
followed by Hong Kong with $0.27 million.
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Operating Expenses
The Corporation incurred total operating expenses of $102.07 million in 2015-16, an
increase of $3.83 million (or 3.9%) from the previous year's $98.24 million. The breakdown

of operating expenses is as follows:

Increase/

2015-16 2014-15 (decrease)

($ million) ($ million) (%)

Staff costs 57.71 58.27 (1.0
Economic and status information 12.66 12.05 5.1
Marketing expenses 11.89 10.16 17.0
Office management 8.04 7.23 1.2
Depreciation 7.70 5.84 31.8

Professional fees 4.05 4.69 (13.6)
Bad debts written off 0.02 - -
Total 102.07 98.24 3.9

Marketing expenses increased by $1.73 million (or 17.0%) compared to 2014-15. The
increase was mainly due to increased brokerage fees caused by an increase in business
conducted with brokers during the year.

Office management expenses were $0.81 million (or 11.2%) more than in 2014-15. The
increase was mainly due to the office renovation that was conducted during the year.
Increases in repair and maintenance costs for new IT systems and IT services also
contributed to the increase.

Depreciation went up by $1.86 million (or 31.8%) compared to 2014-15, mainly due to the
increased capital expenditure on the office renovation that was conducted during the year.

Professional fees were $0.64 million (or 13.6%) lower than the amount spent in 2014-15,
mainly due to a decrease in expenses related to IT secondment and consultancy fees, etc.
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Investment Income
The Corporation posted total investment income of $3.59 million for 2015-16, representing
a decrease of $52.87 million (or 93.6%) against a year ago. This was mainly attributable to

the loss on sales of investments of $12.76 million in 2015-16, against a profit on sales of
investments of $24.81 million in 2014-15.

The global financial markets were largely dominated by bearish sentiment over most of
2015-16. Such factors as the slowdown in Mainland China, downward pressure on
commodity prices and the slump in emerging markets triggered a sharp slide in equities
over the summer of 2015. The markets experienced another acute sell-off in the first two
months of 2016, driven by concerns over the outlook of global growth following the weak
economic data in the US and Mainland China. Against the backdrop of a volatile and
uncertain market environment, the Corporation recorded a lower investment income for
2015-16 than a year earlier.

As at 31 March 2016, the market value of the Corporation’s investments stood at $2,161.93
million, with the breakdown as follows:

Bank deposits

(@) maturing in more than three months 40.00 1.9
(b) maturing within three months 30.00 1.4
Funds managed by the Corporation 70.00 3.3
Funds managed by fund managers 2,091.93 96.7
Total 2,161.93 100.0
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By investment type, the funds managed by the fund managers are as follows:

Investments $ million % of total value
Bonds 1,488.25 71.1
Equities 451.30 21.6
Deposits and forward contracts 152.38 7.3
Total 2,091.93 100.0

Capital and Reserves
The Corporation’s capital and reserves as at 31 March 2016 totalled $2,141.48 million, an
increase of $25.53 million (or 1.2%) from 31 March 2015:

At 31 March At 31 March Increase/

2016 2015 (decrease)

($ million) ($ million) (%)

Capital* - - _

Contingency reserve 1,551.77 1,584.59 (2.1)

Non-insurance reserve 101.27 96.98 4.4

Fair value reserve 42.18 7679 (45.1)

Retained earnings 446.26 357.59 24.8

Total 2,141.48 2,115.95 1.2
* Details of the Corporation’s capital are set out in note 5 of the audited financial statements, Capital.
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Under section 12(3) of the Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation Ordinance
(Chapter 1115), the Corporation is required to maintain adequate reserves to meet its
obligations, including the contingent liability for any unknown catastrophic claims that may
arise from unexpired risks on contracts of insurance entered into by the Corporation. In
addition, the Corporation considers it prudent to set aside an additional reserve for non-
insurance purposes to safeguard against exceptional fluctuations in its operating expenses
or investment performance. Appropriate amounts are set aside for each of these purposes
in the contingency reserve and non-insurance reserve respectively.

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-

for-sale securities held at the end of the reporting period, and is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies mentioned in note 1(f) to the audited financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To
Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation (the “Corporation”)
(Incorporated under the Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation Ordinance)

We have audited the financial statements of Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation (the
"Corporation”) set out on pages 4 to 36, which comprise the Corporation’s statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2016, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Corporation’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Corporation is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the requirements of the Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation Ordinance
(Chapter 1115) (“the Ordinance”), and for such internal control as the Corporation determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we compgf with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether tﬁ

free from material misstatement.

e financial statements are

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Corporation, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Corporation
as at 31 March 2016 and of the Corporation’s financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the Ordinance.

L IE

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

13 May 2016
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Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2016 2015

Note ($) )
Assets
Property, plant and equipment 9 17,802,161 11,842,743
Investments 10 2,091,930,848 2,116,870,072
Insurance and other receivables 11 29,908,115 29,032,373
Reinsurers’ share of unearned premiums 15 10,407,000 8,177,000
Reinsurers’ share of provision for claims 13 39,165,154 28,037,260
Bank deposits maturing in more than three months 17 40,000,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents 17 64,498,499 63,078,036
Total assets 2,293,711,777 2,257,037,484
Equity and liabilities
Capital and reserves
Capital 5 - -
Contingency reserve 6 1,551,768,000 1,584,590,000
Non-insurance reserve 6 101,265,693 96,975,411
Fair value reserve b6 42,180,322 76,794,080
Retained earnings 446,263,021 357,590,795
Total capital and reserves 2,141,477,036 2,115,950,286
Liabilities
Provision for claims 13 96,533,676 71,928,708
Insurance and other payables 12 35,295,065 50,295,490
Unearned premiums 15 20,406,000 18,863,000
Total liabilities 152,234,741 141,087,198
Total equity and liabilities 2,293,711,777 2,257,037,484

Approved by:

Ralph Lai
Commissioner

13 May 2016

The notes on pages 9 to 36 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2016 2015

Note ($) ()

Revenue 7 257,444,015 283,562,873
Premiums ceded to reinsurers (128,425,000) (122,077,219)
Net premiums written 129,019,015 161,485,654
Decrease in unearned premiums 687,000 1,805,000
Net premiums earned 129,706,015 163,290,654
Net investment income 16 3,588,112 56,465,929
Reinsurers’ commissions 67,333,981 61,613,116
Policy fees 761,775 996,425
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (47,831) 50,000
Sundry income 92,170 219,326
Other income 71,728,207 119,344,796
Less: Gross claims 13 76,346,681 57,540,156
Reinsurers’ share 13 (34,420,665) (22,777,412)

Net claims 41,926,016 34,762,744
Gross recoveries (4,916,561) (6,842,170)
Reinsurers’ share 2,212,452 3,078,977
Net recoveries (2,704,109) (3,763,193)

Net claims incurred 13 39,221,907 30,999,551
162,212,315 251,635,899

Less: Staff costs 8 57,714,752 58,269,971
Economic and status information 12,656,615 12,045,700
Professional fees 4,050,277 4,695,512
Depreciation 9 7,701,065 5,844,797

Office management 8,043,868 7,225,827
Marketing expenses 11,888,887 10,159,355

Bad debts written off 16,343 =
Operating expenses 102,071,807 98,241,162

Profit for the year 60,140,508 153,394,737

The notes on pages 9 to 36 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2016 2015
($) @)
Profit for the year 60,140,508 153,394,737
Other comprehensive income for the year
Available-for-sale securities:
Items that may be classified subsequently to profit or loss
Changes in fair value recognised during the year (30,006,199) 38,535,284
Reclassification adjustments for amounts transferred to profit or loss:
— Impairment loss 11,421,941 3,044,764
— Net realised gain on disposal (16,029,500) (36,857,227)
Net movement in the fair value reserve during the year recognised
in other comprehensive income (34,613,758) 4,722,821
Total comprehensive income for the year 25,526,750 158,117,558

The notes on pages 9 to 36 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Fair value Contingency  Non-insurance Retained
Capital reserve reserve reserve earnings Total

©)] ©] $) ($) (%) (O]
Balance at 1 April 2015 - 76,794,080 1,584,590,000 96,975,411 357,590,795 2,115,950,286
Profit for the year - - - - 60,140,508 60,140,508
Other comprehensive income - (34,613,758) - - - (34,613,758)
Total comprehensive income - (34,613,758) - - 60,140,508 25,526,750
Transfer (to)/from retained earnings - - (32,822,000) 4,290,282 28,531,718 -
Balance at 31 March 2016 - 42,180,322 1,551,768,000 101,265,693 446,263,021 2,141,477,036
Balance at 1 April 2014 - 72,071,259 1,464,280,000 88,861,010 332,620,459 1,957,832,728
Profit for the year - = = = 153,394,737 153,394,737
Other comprehensive income - 4,722,821 - - - 4,722,821
Total comprehensive income - 4,722,821 = = 153,394,737 158,117,558
Transfer from/(to) retained earnings - - 120,310,000 8,114,401 (128,424,401) =
Balance at 31 March 2015 - 76,794,080 1,584,590,000 96,975,411 357,590,795 2,115,950,286

The notes on pages 9 to 36 form part of these financial statements.
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Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2016 2015
Note ($) )
Operating activities
Profit for the year 60,140,508 153,394,737
Adjustments for:
Net investment income 18 (3,588,112) (56,465,929)
Fund management fees (5,624,893) (5,423,550)
Depreciation 9 7,701,065 5,844,797
Bad debts written off 16,343 =
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 47,831 (50,000)
Operating result before changes in working capital 58,692,742 97,300,055
(Increase)/decrease in insurance and other receivables (1,726,673) 2,912,230
Increase in reinsurers’ share of unearned premiums (2,230,000) (69,000)
(Increase)/decrease in reinsurers’ share of
provision for claims (11,127,894) 6,162,101
(Decrease)/increase in insurance and other payables (15,000,425) 10,447,249
Increase/(decrease) in provision for claims 24,604,968 (6,769,872)
Increase/(decrease) in unearned premiums 1,543,000 (1,736,000)
Net cash generated from operating activities 54,755,718 108,246,763
Investing activities
Placement of time deposits (205,090,470) (10,000,000)
Maturity of time deposits 165,090,470 14,000,000
Fund injection to existing fund managers 18 - (120,000,000)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 9 (13,713,314) (7,808,496)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 5,000 50,000
Interest received from short-term deposits 122,687 1,845,049
Interest and dividends received from investments 49,373 3,780
Stamp duty refund 200,999 299,934
Net cash used in investing activities (53,335,255) (121,609,733)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,420,463 (13,362,970)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 17 63,078,036 76,441,006
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 64,498,499 63,078,036

The notes on pages 9 to 36 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1

Significant accounting policies

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs) which collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Export Credit Insurance Corporation Ordinance (Chapter 1115). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Corporation is set out below.

The HKICPA has revised certain and issued new HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Corporation. Note 1(c) provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Corporation for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in the
financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is historical cost except
for certain financial assets which are stated at fair value as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are
discussed in note 2.

The Corporation’s functional currency is Hong Kong dollars.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Corporation:

e Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

e Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

10

(d)

The Corporation has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the new or amended HKFRSs are discussed
below:

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle and 2011-2013 Cycle

These two cycles of annual improvements contain amendments to nine standards with
consequential amendments to other standards. Among them, HKAS 24, Related party disclosures
has been amended to expand the definition of a “related party” to include a management entity
that provides key management personnel services to the reporting entity, and to require the
disclosure of the amounts incurred for obtaining the key management personnel services provided
by the management entity. These amendments do not have an impact on the Corporation’s
related party disclosures as the Corporation does not obtain key management personnel services
from management entities.

Insurance contracts

(i)  Classification of contracts
Contracts under which the Corporation accepts significant insurance risk from another party
(the policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the policyholder or other beneficiary if a
specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholder or other
beneficiary are classified as insurance contracts. Insurance risk is risk other than financial risk.
Insurance contracts may also transfer some financial risk.

The Corporation has elected to treat all credit insurance contracts as insurance contracts and
to account for them in accordance with HKFRS 4, Insurance contracts.

(i)  Recognition and measurement of contracts
Premiums
Gross premiums written reflect business written during the year.

The earned proportion of premiums is recognised as revenue. Premiums are earned from the
date of attachment of risk over the indemnity period based on the pattern of the risks
underwritten.

Unearned premium provision

The provision for unearned premiums comprises the proportion of gross premiums written
which is estimated to be earned in the following or subsequent financial years according to
the payment terms of each shipment.

Claims

Claims incurred comprise the settlement and handling costs of paid and outstanding claims
arising from events occurring during the financial year together with adjustments to prior year
claims provisions.

Claims outstanding comprise provisions for the Corporation’s estimate of the ultimate cost of
settling all claims incurred but unpaid at the end of the reporting period whether intimated or
not, and related external claims handling expenses.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Claims outstanding are assessed by reviewing individual claims and making allowance for
claims incurred but not yet intimated. Estimates of salvage and subrogation recoveries are
presented separately as assets. Recoveries are assessed in a manner similar to the assessment
of claims outstanding.

Adjustments to claims provisions established in prior years are reflected in the financial
statements of the period in which the adjustments are made and disclosed separately if
material.

Reinsurance

The Corporation cedes reinsurance in the normal course of business for the purpose of
limiting its net loss potential through the diversification of its risks. Assets, liabilities, income
and expenses arising from ceded reinsurance contracts are presented separately from the
related assets, liabilities, income and expenses from the related insurance contracts because
the reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Corporation from its direct obligations to its
policyholders.

Only rights under contracts that give rise to a significant transfer of insurance risk are
accounted for as reinsurance assets. Rights under contracts that do not transfer significant
insurance risk are accounted for as financial instruments.

Reinsurance premiums for ceded reinsurance are recognised as an expense on a basis that is
consistent with the recognition basis for the premiums on the related insurance contracts.
Reinsurance premiums are expensed over the period that the reinsurance cover is provided
based on the expected pattern of the reinsured risks. The unexpensed portion of ceded
reinsurance premiums is included in reinsurance assets.

Reinsurance assets are assessed for impairment at the end of each reporting period. An asset
is deemed impaired if there is objective evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after
its initial recognition, that the Corporation may not recover all amounts due, and that the
event has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts that the Corporation will receive from
the reinsurers.

Liability adequacy test

At the end of each reporting period, insurance contract liabilities are tested for adequacy by
discounting current estimates of all future contractual cash flows and comparing this amount
to the carrying value of the liability and any related assets. Where a shortfall is identified, an
additional provision is made and the Corporation recognises the deficiency in profit or loss
for the year.
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(e) Property, plant and equipment

(f)

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(h)). Depreciation is calculated to
write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

—  Leasehold land and building held for own use 40 years
—  Leasehold improvements 5 years
—  Computer equipment 3 years
—  Motor vehicle 3years
—  Office machinery and furniture 5 years

Available-for-sale securities

Investments in listed and unlisted debt and equity securities are classified as available-for-sale
securities. When available-for-sale securities are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of available-for-sale securities are recognised on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the Corporation commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of available-for-sale securities that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale securities are measured at fair value, with any gains or
losses recognised directly in the fair value reserve, which is a separate component of equity, until
the investment is derecognised or until the investment is determined to be impaired, at which time
the cumulative gains or losses previously reported in the fair value reserve are included in profit or
loss. In the case of monetary items such as debt securities, foreign exchange gains and losses are
directly recognised in profit or loss. Where these investments are interest-bearing, interest
calculated using effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss.

(i)  Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised financial markets is
determined by reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of business at the end of
the reporting period. For investments where there is no active market, fair value is
determined using valuation techniques that provide a reliable estimate of prices which could
be obtained in actual market transactions. Such techniques include using recent arm'’s length
market transactions; reference to the current market value of another instrument which is
substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing models.
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(ii)

(iii)

Impairment

The Corporation assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective
evidence that an item of available-for-sale securities is impaired. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Corporation about
one or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
— abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative losses that have been recognised in the fair
value reserve are reclassified to profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative losses that is
recognised in profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment losses on that asset
previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses in such circumstances are
recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition
An item of available-for-sale securities is derecognised where:

— the right to receive cash flows from the investment has expired;

— the Corporation retains the rights to receive cash flows from the investment, but has
assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a
"pass-through” arrangement; or

— the Corporation has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the investment and
either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the investment, or (b)
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
investment, but has transferred control of the investment.

Where these investments are derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised directly in the fair value reserve are recognised in profit or loss.

13
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(g) Forward foreign exchange contracts

(h)

(i)

(k)

Forward foreign exchange contracts are recognised initially at fair value. At the end of each
reporting period the value is remeasured. The gains or losses on remeasurement to fair value are
recognised immediately to profit or loss.

Impairment of assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required (other than available-for-sale securities), the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's
value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for each individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case, the recoverable amount is determined from the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, however, not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation), had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.

Insurance and other receivables

Insurance and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost less impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (see note 1(h)), except where the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (see note 1(h)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Insurance and other payables

Insurance and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.
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() Translation of foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies have been translated into Hong Kong dollars at the approximate market rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses, whether realised
or unrealised, are dealt with in profit or loss.

(m) Related parties
A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Corporation if that
person:

(a)

(b)

has control or joint control over the Corporation;
has significant influence over the Corporation; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the Corporation or the Corporation’s
parent.

An entity is related to the Corporation if any of the following conditions applies:

(viii)

the entity and the Corporation are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
Corporation or any entity related to the Corporation;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Corporation or the Corporation’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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(n) Revenue recognition
(i)  Premiums
The accounting policy in relation to revenue from insurance contracts is disclosed in note 1(d)

(ii).

(i) Reinsurers’ commissions
Reinsurers’ commissions are recognised when the reinsurance premiums are accounted for
and are based on the contractual commission rates and the expected ultimate loss ratios at
the financial year end.

(i)  Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

Dividend income from listed equities is recognised when the share price of the investment
goes ex-dividend.

(iv) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.

(o) Employee benefits
(i) Salaries and paid annual leave are accrued in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the Corporation.

(i) Obligations for contributions to the defined contribution retirement plans, including
contributions payable under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as incurred.

2 Accounting estimates and judgments
The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of these
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year then ended.
While management believes that the amounts included in these financial statements reflect its best
estimates and assumptions, actual results could differ from those estimates. The Corporation’s principal
estimates include:
— provision for claims;
— contingency reserve; and

— impairment of available-for-sale securities.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty, including assumptions and key risk factors, and critical judgments
in relation to these accounting policies are set out in notes 4, 6 and below.
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Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity securities

The Corporation determines that available-for-sale equity securities are impaired when there has been
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. The determination of when a decline
in fair value below its cost is not recoverable within a reasonable time period is judgemental in nature,
so profit or loss could be affected by differences in judgement.

3 Insurance and financial risk management

Exposure to insurance and financial risks arises in the normal course of the Corporation’s business. This
section summarises these risks and the way the Corporation manages them.

(a) Insurance risk
The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the
uncertainty of the amount of the resulting claim. The Corporation manages its insurance risk mainly
through its underwriting and reinsurance strategies.

The Corporation’s insurance business covers non-payment risks arising from:
(i) Buyer risks — insolvency and bankruptcy, default and contract repudiation; and

(i) Country risks — blockage or delay in foreign exchange remittance, cancellation of import
licences, import bans, payment moratorium, war, revolution, riot and natural disaster.

For the assessment and monitoring of buyer risks, the Corporation takes into consideration both
qualitative and quantitative factors and conducts regular reviews on the buyers’ credit standing
and payment performance. As regards country risks, the Corporation periodically reviews the
economic and political conditions of the insured markets so as to revise its underwriting guidelines,
wherever appropriate.

As the bulk of the insured exports are for the developed markets, the risks underwritten
concentrate on the buyer risks in the developed markets. Insured business by major markets is
shown below:

2016 2015

Sum insured % of total Sum insured % of total

($ million) sum insured ($ million) sum insured

USA 38,486 34.8 42,757 38.3
Mainland China 20,896 18.9 16,803 15.1
UK 9,746 8.8 10,219 9.2
Germany 3,920 3.6 4,237 3.8
Switzerland 3,074 2.8 2,435 2.2
Other markets 34,362 311 35,119 314
Total sum insured 110,484 100.0 111,570 100.0
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(1)

(i)

Underwriting strategy

The Corporation’s underwriting strategy seeks diversity to ensure a balanced portfolio of
risks. As such, it is believed that this reduces the variability of the outcome. The Corporation
also aims to achieve accurate, objective and prompt assessment of risks to support exporters
with professional credit management services to help them expand business.

Underwriters are delegated with underwriting authorities that set out the limits that they can
issue according to their rank and experience. The Corporation has established procedures
and internal credit committees to underwrite risks and review large exposures on a regular
basis.

Reinsurance strategy

The Corporation reinsures its risks to limit its exposure to underwriting losses with a quota
share treaty with annual renewal. To manage the risks and to ensure the reinsurers have the
capability to honour their shares of insurance liabilities, the Corporation has carefully selected
reinsurers with good credit standing to join the programmes and regularly reviewed their
credibility, with reference to the advice from a professional and reputable broker.

(b) Financial risk

(1)

Credit risk

The Corporation is exposed to credit risk that its policyholders or counterparties become
incapable to pay amounts in full when due. Key areas where the Corporation is exposed to
credit risk are its insurance and other receivables, debt securities, bank balances and through
its reinsurance assets.

— Insurance and other receivables
The Corporation has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spreading
over a number of policyholders and counterparties. The receivables from policyholders
are due within 14 days from the date of billing. Reminders will be sent to policyholders
in respect of those long outstanding invoices. Management reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual debt regularly to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
recognised for irrecoverable debts.

—  Debt securities
Debt securities are normally only liquid securities and with high credit ratings assigned
by leading international credit ratings agencies. To reduce the credit risk associated with
debt securities, the Corporation restricts the fund managers to invest in debt securities
with credit ratings not below the “AA" investment grade (2015: “AA" or higher) and
government bonds with “A-" or higher ratings (2015: “A-" or higher) of Standard &
Poor's or equivalent rating by Moody's.

— Bank balances
The Corporation’s credit risk is attributable to bank balances. To reduce the credit risk
associated with bank balances, the Corporation is restricted to placing deposits with
approved banks which should be local licensed banks under the Banking Ordinance with
good financial strength and credit rating.
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— Reinsurance assets

To reduce the credit risk with insurance debtors, the Corporation takes into account,
among other factors, ratings and evaluation by recognised credit ratings agencies, their
claims payment and underwriting track record, as well as the Corporation’s past
transaction experience with them. The Corporation manages the risks through careful
selection of reinsurers and regularly reviews their credibility. The Standard & Poor's
credit ratings of the reinsurers for the 2016 reinsurance treaty are “A-"or higher (2015:
“A-"or higher).

(i) Liquidity risk
Liquidity management is essential to ensure the Corporation has the ability to meet its
obligations as they fall due. The Corporation’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
readily realisable marketable securities to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer terms.

The following table details the insurance and financial liabilities at the end of the reporting

period:
Total contractual

Carrying value undiscounted Within one year
at 31 March cashflows or on demand
$) ©) $)

At 31 March 2016
Policy deposits 22,906,006 22,906,006 22,906,006
Amounts due to reinsurers 2,928,258 2,928,258 2,928,258
Other creditors and accrued charges 9,460,801 9,460,801 9,460,801
35,295,065 35,295,065 35,295,065

At 31 March 2015
Policy deposits 24,100,479 24,100,479 24,100,479
Amounts due to reinsurers 14,912,145 14,912,145 14,912,145
Other creditors and accrued charges 11,282,866 11,282,866 11,282,866
50,295,490 50,295,490 50,295,490

(iii) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that interest rates will move and result in profits or losses to the
Corporation. The Corporation’s interest rate risk is concentrated in its investment portfolio
and cash at bank. The effective interest rates at the end of the reporting period and the
maturities are set out in notes 10 and 17 to the financial statements.

19



Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation Annual Report 2015 - 16

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

A sensitivity analysis of fixed rate debt securities and cash deposits at bank at the end of the
reporting period is performed. The following details the effect of change in interest rate with
all other variables held constant.

2016 2015
Increase/ Effect on profit Effect on other Effect on profit Effect on other
(decrease) in and retained components and retained components
interest rate earnings of equity earnings of equity
(%) ($ million) ($ million) ($ million) ($ million)
Fixed rate debt securities 0.5 - (17.70) = (13.45)
(0.5) - 17.70 - 13.45
Cash deposits at banks 0.5 0.35 - 0.29 -
(0.5) (0.35) - (0.29) -

(iv) Equity price risk

The Corporation is exposed to equity price changes arising from equity investments classified
as available-for-sale equity securities. To reduce the equity price risk associated with equity
securities, the Corporation restricts the fund managers to invest no more than 30% of the
total value of portfolio in equities and to invest in approved stock markets with minimum
market capitalisation requirement.

The following table indicates the approximate change in the Corporation’s equity in response
to reasonably possible changes in the relevant stock market indices in respect of listed
investments with all other variables held constant.

Change in 2016 2015

market indices Effect on equity Effect on equity

(%) ($ million) ($ million)

Stock market indices 10.0 49.74 59.63
(10.0) (49.74) (59.63)
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(v)

Fair values

Financial instruments carried at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the carrying value of financial instruments measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in
HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value of each financial instrument
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to that fair
value measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

— Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical financial instruments

—  Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data
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— Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using valuation techniques in which any
significant input is not based on observable market data

The best evidence of fair value is a quoted price in an actively traded market. In the event
that the market for a financial instrument is not active, a valuation technique is used. The
majority of valuation techniques employ only observable market data, and so the reliability of
the fair value measurement is high. However, certain financial instruments are valued on the
basis of valuation techniques that feature one or more significant market inputs that are not
observable. For these instruments, the fair value measurement derived is more judgemental.
‘Not observable’ in this context means that there is little or no current market data available
from which to determine the level at which an arm’s length transaction would likely occur. But
it generally does not mean that there is absolutely no market data available upon which to
base a determination of fair value (historical data may, for example, be used). Furthermore,
the assessment of the hierarchy level is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to
the fair value of the financial instrument. Consequently, the level of uncertainty in the
determination of the unobservable inputs will generally give rise to valuation uncertainty that
is less than the fair value itself.

2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
($) ($) ($) ($)
Assets

Available-for-sale securities:
— Listed 1,226,081,074 548,511,239 - 1,774,592,313
— Unlisted 92,360,022 72,600,880 - 164,960,902
Forward exchange contracts - (5,635,033) - (5,635,033)
Deposits with fund managers 158,012,666 - - 158,012,666
1,476,453,762 615,477,086 - 2,091,930,848

2015
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$) %) % $)
Assets

Available-for-sale securities:
— Listed 1,680,351,521 121,709,147 1,244,220 1,803,304,888
— Unlisted 100,223,195 68,394,988 = 168,618,183
Forward exchange contracts - 3,880,726 - 3,880,726
Deposits with fund managers 141,066,275 - - 141,066,275
1,921,640,991 193,984,861 1,244,220 2,116,870,072

Available-for-sale securities amounting to $323,524,902 were transferred from Level 1 in 2015
to Level 2 in 2016 (2015: $157,630,083 transferred from Level 1 to Level 2). The transfer was
due to a decrease in trading volume and/or the number of broker quotes available in an
active market. The Corporation’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.
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Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of available-for-sale securities and forward exchange contracts in Level 2 is
determined by using valuation techniques and inputs using third-party pricing information
without adjustment from the fund managers.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
The movement during the year in the balance of Level 3 fair value measurements are as

follows:
2016 2015
($) @)
Available-for-sale equity securities
At 1 April 1,244,220 -
Payment for purchases - 1,341,459
Net unrealised losses recognised in
other comprehensive income during the period (623,000) (97,239)
Transfer to Level 1 (621,220) —
At 31 March - 1,244,220

Total gains or losses for the year reclassified from other
comprehensive income - -

Total gains or losses for the year included in profit or
loss for assets held at the end of the reporting period - -

An available-for-sale security amounting to $1,244,220 was classified in Level 3 in 2015 due to
trading suspension. In the absence of an active market, the security’s fair value is estimated
on the basis of the quoted price before trading suspension, an analysis of the investee’s
prospects and other factors. The available-for-sale security was resumed trading in 2016 and
hence transferred to Level 1 in 2016 since the security’s fair value is measured using
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical financial instruments.
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(vi) Foreign exchange risk
At 31 March 2016 and 2015, respectively, approximately 85.0% and 81.3% of the Corporation’s
investments were denominated in foreign currencies.

The following table indicates the approximate change in the Corporation’s profit for the year,
retained earnings and other components of equity in response to reasonably possible
changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the Corporation had exposure at the end of
the reporting period.

2016
Change in Effect on Effect
foreign profit on other
exchange and retained components
rate earnings of equity
Currency ($ million) (%) (%) ($ million) ($ million)
EUR 63.80 3.0 10.0 0.36 6.02
(10.0) (0.36) (6.02)
JPY 59.85 2.8 7.0 - 4.18
(7.0) - (4.18)
RMB 28.93 1.3 3.0 0.87 -
(3.0) (0.87) -
GBP 19.50 0.9 6.0 0.02 1.15
(6.0) (0.02) (1.15)
CHF 18.77 0.9 4.0 - 0.75
(4.0) - (0.75)
AUD 5.23 0.2 14.0 0.53 0.20
(14.0) (0.53) (0.20)

2015
Change in Effect on Effect
foreign profit and on other
exchange retained components
rate earnings of equity
Currency ($ million) (%) (%) ($ million) ($ million)
RMB 197.06 9.1 1.0 1.97 -
(1.0) (1.97) -
Asia — excl. HKD, RMB 66.48 31 8.0 (0.83) 6.07
(8.0) 0.83 (6.07)
EUR 54.29 25 8.0 (0.74) 5.09
(8.0) 0.74 (5.09)
GBP 48.37 2.2 1.0 0.01 0.48
(1.0) (0.01) (0.48)
AUD 14.25 0.7 6.0 0.15 0.71
(6.0) (0.15) 0.71)
CHF 12.85 0.6 3.0 - 0.39
3.0 = (0.39)
CAD 0.14 0.0 7.0 0.01 -
(7.0) (0.01) _
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Management considers the foreign exchange risk of holding US dollar to be minimal.
Furthermore, the Corporation entered into forward exchange contracts to mitigate the
foreign exchange risk of certain investments denominated in foreign currencies, principally
Euro, Australian dollar and RMB. The Hong Kong dollar equivalent amount of forward
exchange contracts entered into by the Corporation at 31 March 2016 is outstanding at
$5,635,033 (2015: $3,880,726). By currency type, notional contract amounts of forward
exchange contracts with short position are shown below:

2016 2015
($ million) ($ million)
AUD Forward contract 56.55 53.90
CAD Forward contract - 3.06
EUR Forward contract 63.48 74.81
JPY Forward contract - 9.51
SGD Forward contract - 23.11
RMB Forward contract 17.56 -
4 Provision for claims not yet intimated
The provision for claims not yet intimated is calculated based on the historical average ratio of claims
incurred but not yet reported and the aggregate amount of the outstanding shipments that were at risk
at the end of the reporting period. The provision is normally kept open for two accounting years. The
historical average ratio is derived using the Corporation’s “average” methodology adjusted for
management judgement by making reference to other methodologies such as the Bornhuetter-
Ferguson method to ascertain the reasonableness of the historical average ratio. This process remains
unchanged from prior years.
The Corporation believes that the provision for outstanding claims is adequate. However, an increase of
5% in the expected loss ratio in the latest underwriting year would decrease both profit and net assets
by $4.11 million (2015: $2.95 million).
5 Capital

24

The Corporation refunded the initial capital injection of $20 million to the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region in May 2012. The Corporation’s capital and reserves as at 31 March
2016 totalled $2,141.48 million (2015: $2,115.95 million).

The Corporation aims to encourage and support export trade through the provision of insurance
protection for Hong Kong exporters against non-payment risks arising from commercial and political
events.

In managing its capital and reserves, the Corporation will determine the total amount required by
taking into account the sums at risk under contracts of insurance entered into by the Corporation (see
note 6). In addition, the maximum liability the Corporation is permitted to undertake should not at any
time exceed the Statutory Maximum Liability, which is guaranteed by the Government under section 23
of the Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation Ordinance (Chapter 1115). The Corporation’s
overall capital management strategy remains unchanged from prior years.
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6 Nature and purpose of reserves

(a)

(b)

Contingency reserve and non-insurance reserve

The Corporation is required to have adequate reserves to meet its obligations stipulated under
section 12(3) of the Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation Ordinance (Chapter 1115),
including the contingent liability to any unknown catastrophic claims that may arise from unexpired
risks on contracts of insurance entered into by the Corporation. In addition, the Corporation
considers it prudent to set aside an additional reserve for “non-insurance” purposes, to safeguard
against exceptional fluctuation in the operating expenses or investment performance. Appropriate
amounts, set aside for the above purposes, are disclosed as “contingency reserve” and “non-
insurance reserve” respectively.

Transfers to or from these reserves represent appropriations from retained earnings, determined
on the basis of criteria recommended by independent consultants.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
securities held at the end of the reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies in notes 1(f).

7 Revenue

The principal activity of the Corporation is the provision of export credit insurance.

Revenue represents gross premiums written during the year in the ordinary course of business, net of
discounts and rebates.

8 Staff costs

2016 2015

($) $)

Salaries, wages and other benefits 53,502,490 54,084,339
Contributions to defined contribution plans 4,212,262 4,185,632
57,714,752 58,269,971
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9 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land Office
and building Leasehold Computer Motor machinery
held for own use improvements equipment vehicle and furniture Total
9 9 ) 0 &) 9)

Cost:
Balance at 1 April 2015 26,100,000 9,837,094 50,980,071 449,925 2,584,596 89,951,686
Additions - 11,029,469 2,453,162 - 230,683 13,713,314
Disposals - (7,070,940) (4,849,308) - (1,050,445) (12,970,693)
Balance at 31 March 2016 26,100,000 13,795,623 48,583,925 449,925 1,764,834 90,694,307
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at 1 April 2015 21,532,500 8,176,812 45,960,582 149,975 2,289,074 78,108,943
Charge for the year 652,500 2,693,513 4,005,953 149,975 199,124 7,701,065
Written back on disposals - (7,023,650) (4,849,308) - (1,044,904) (12,917,862)
Balance at 31 March 2016 22,185,000 3,846,675 45,117,227 299,950 1,443,294 72,892,146
Net book value:
At 31 March 2016 3,915,000 9,948,948 3,466,698 149,975 321,540 17,802,161
Cost:
Balance at 1 April 2014 26,100,000 8,674,050 45,844,741 363,800 2,560,736 83,543,327
Additions - 1,804,291 5,493,730 449,925 60,550 7,808,496
Disposals - (641,247) (358,400) (363,800) (36,690) (1,400,137)
Balance at 31 March 2015 26,100,000 9,837,094 50,980,071 449,925 2,584,596 89,951,686
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at 1 April 2014 20,880,000 8,213,618 42,066,333 363,800 2,140,532 73,664,283
Charge for the year 652,500 604,441 4,252,649 149,975 185,232 5,844,797
Written back on disposals - (641,247) (358,400) (363,800) (36,690) (1,400,137)
Balance at 31 March 2015 21,532,500 8,176,812 45,960,582 149,975 2,289,074 78,108,943
Net book value:
At 31 March 2015 4,567,500 1,660,282 5,019,489 299,950 295,522 11,842,743

Note: The leasehold office premises are situated in Hong Kong and held under a long-term lease.
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10 Investments

2016 2015

Effective Effective

interest rates interest rates
(%) ($) (%) $)

(a) Available-for-sale securities
— debt securities 0.16 - 4.86 0.17 -5.83
Listed

—In Hong Kong 124,522,098 179,100,681

— Outside Hong Kong

1,198,771,626

1,028,157,084

1,323,293,724

1,207,257,765

Unlisted
—In Hong Kong 24,082,776 20,026,254
— Outside Hong Kong 140,878,126 148,591,929
164,960,902 168,618,183
(b) Available-for-sale securities
- equity securities
Listed
—In Hong Kong 150,861,702 232,152,603
— Outside Hong Kong 300,436,887 363,894,520
451,298,589 596,047,123
(¢) Trading — foreign exchange forward
contracts (5,635,033) 3,880,726
(d) Deposits with fund managers 0-1.47 158,012,666 0-2.30 141,066,275

Total

2,091,930,848

2,116,870,072

Market value of all foreign exchange forward contracts are offset and the net amount is reported in the
end of the reporting period when the Corporation currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The following table sets out the carrying amounts of recognised financial
instruments that are subject to the above agreements:

2016 2015
($) $)
Gross amount
Derivative assets 239,784 4,198,810
Derivative liabilities (5,874,817) (318,084)
Net amounts presented in the statement of financial position
Derivative (liabilities)/assets (5,635,033) 3,880,726
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In respect of income-earning financial assets/(liabilities), the following table indicates the periods in
which they reprice or the maturity dates, if earlier:

Less than One to Two to More than
one year two years five years five years Total
($) ($) ($) ($) ($)
Available-for-sale securities
— debt securities 344,838,428 253,687,276 746,228,940 143,499,982 1,488,254,626
Trading — foreign exchange
forward contracts (5,635,033) - - - (5,635,033)
Deposits with fund managers 158,012,666 - - - 158,012,666
As at 31 March 2016 497,216,061 253,687,276  746,228940 143,499,982  1,640,632,259
Maturity analysis for financial liabilities:
Gross nominal Three
Carrying (outflow)/ Less than One to months
amount inflow one month three months to one year
(%) (%) (%) ($) (%)
Derivative liabilities (5,635,033) - - - -
Qutflows - (155,041,450) (78,824,345) (76,217,105) -
Inflows - 149,406,417 77,579,205 71,827,212 -
As at 31 March 2016 (5,635,033) (5,635,033) (1,245,140) (4,389,893) -
Less than One to Two to More than
one year two years five years five years Total
O] @) $) ($) O]
Available-for-sale securities
— debt securities 444,815,649 331,266,616 511,611,816 88,181,867 1,375,875,948
Trading — foreign exchange
forward contracts 3,880,726 - - - 3,880,726
Deposits with fund managers 141,066,275 = = = 141,066,275
As at 31 March 2015 589,762,650 331,266,616 511,611,816 88,181,867 1,520,822,949
Maturity analysis for financial assets:
Gross nominal
Carrying (outflow)/ Less than One to Three months
amount inflow one month three months to one year
) O] $) $) @)
Derivative assets 3,880,726 - - - -
Outflows - (177,456,483) (67,263,421) (110,193,062) -
Inflows = 181,337,209 67,719,954 113,617,255 =
As at 31 March 2015 3,880,726 3,880,726 456,533 3,424,193 -
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11 Insurance and other receivables

2016 2015
($) $)
Insurance receivables 19,179,412 18,102,265
Other debtors and prepayments 2,701,866 2,068,683
Interest and dividends receivables 8,026,837 8,861,425
29,908,115 29,032,373

Insurance and other receivables expected to be recovered
Within one year 29,339,462 28,747,520
More than one year 568,653 284,853
29,908,115 29,032,373

Insurance and other receivables that are not impaired

Insurance receivables are due within 14 days from the date of billing. Further details on the
Corporation’s credit policy is set out in note 3(b)(i).

The ageing analysis of insurance receivables that are neither individually nor collectively considered to
be impaired is as follows:

2016 2015

($) (%)

Neither past due nor impaired 14,065,160 13,127,483
Past due less than three months but not impaired 5,114,252 4,974,782
19,179,412 18,102,265

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of policyholders for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent policyholders that
have a good track record with the Corporation. Based on experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Corporation does
not hold any collateral over these balances.
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12 Insurance and other payables

2016 2015
($) $)
Policy deposits 22,906,006 24,100,479
Amounts due to reinsurers 2,928,258 14,912,145
Other creditors and accrued charges 9,460,801 11,282,866
35,295,065 50,295,490

Insurance and other payables expected to be settled
Within one year 12,568,559 26,498,311
More than one year 22,726,506 23,797,179
35,295,065 50,295,490

Reinsurance premium, commission, claims expenses and recoveries are offset and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position when the Corporation currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

The following table sets out the carrying amounts of recognised financial instruments that are subject to
the above agreements:

2016 2015
($) ®)
Gross amount
Assets: Insurance and other receivables
— Amount due from reinsurers 38,070,542 53,782,189
Liabilities: Insurance and other payables
— Amount due to reinsurers (40,998,800) (68,694,334)
Net amounts presented in the statement of financial position
Liabilities: Insurance and other payables (2,928,258) (14,912,145)
13 Provision for claims
Reinsurers’
Gross share Net
€Y ©) ®)
At 1 April 2015
Provision for claims intimated 11,928,708 (5,379,760) 6,548,948
Provision for claims not yet intimated 60,000,000 (22,657,500) 37,342,500
71,928,708 (28,037,260) 43,891,448
Claims paid during the year (51,741,713) 23,292,771 (28,448,942)
Claims incurred during the year 76,346,681 (34,420,665) 41,926,016
At 31 March 2016 96,533,676 (39,165,154) 57,368,522
Provision for claims intimated 34,737,407 (15,631,833) 19,105,574
Provision for claims not yet intimated 61,796,269 (23,533,321) 38,262,948

96,533,676 (39,165,154) 57,368,522
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2016 2015
($) $)
(a) Provision for claims intimated

Gross provision at 1 April 11,928,708 24,698,580
Claims paid against provision (10,234,565) (18,036,536)
1,694,143 6,662,044
Provision written back (1,214,229) (6,662,044)
479,914 —
Transfer from provision for claims not yet intimated 13,153,246 4,115,020
13,633,160 4,115,020
Provision made during the year 21,104,247 7,813,688
Gross provision at 31 March (A) 34,737,407 11,928,708
Reinsurers’ share (B) (15,631,833) (5,379,760)
Net provision at 31 March (C) 19,105,574 6,548,948

(b) Provision for claims not yet intimated
Gross provision at 1 April 60,000,000 54,000,000

Claims paid against provision

(27,520,698)

(31,376,142)

32,479,302 22,623,858

Provision written back (16,529,787) (8,508,838)

15,949,515 14,115,020

Transfer to provision for claims intimated (13,153,246) (4,115,020)

2,796,269 10,000,000

Provision made during the year 59,000,000 50,000,000

Gross provision at 31 March (D) 61,796,269 60,000,000

Reinsurers’ share (E) (23,533,321) (22,657,500)

Net provision at 31 March (F) 38,262,948 37,342,500

(c) Total gross provision at 31 March (A) + (D) 96,533,676 71,928,708

(d) Total reinsurers’ share (B) + (E) (39,165,154) (28,037,260)

(e) Total net provision at 31 March (C) + (F) 57,368,522 43,891,448
(f)  Amounts of provision expected to be settled after more than 1 year

Gross provision 32,568,050 33,425,998

Reinsurers’ share

(14,430,623)

(13,691,699)

Net provision expected to be settled after more than one year

18,137,427

19,734,299
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14 Analysis of claims development

Gross of reinsurance - 2016

Underwriting year
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Total
($) (%) (%) (%) (%) ()
Estimate of cumulative claims
At end of underwriting year 118,947,377 87,640,223 80,779,699 72,539,766 94,089,434
- one year later 91,483,339 58,197,448 72,975,911 62,853,489 -
~two years later 85,753,540 50,830,389 64,918,172 - -
~three years later 85,819,062 50,831,652 - - -
~four years later 85,819,062 - - - -
Estimate of cumulative claims 85,819,062 50,831,652 64,918,172 62,853,489 94,089,434 358,511,809
Cumulative payments to date (85,819,062) (50,831,652) (64,438,258) (46,903,974) (13,985,187) (261,978,133)
Gross outstanding claims liabilities - - 479,914 15,949,515 80,104,247 96,533,676
Net of reinsurance - 2016
Underwriting year
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Total
(%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Estimate of cumulative claims
At end of underwriting year 66,658,558 49,372,123 45,463,835 44,002,529 55,799,189
- one year later 50,428,337 32,188,596 40,361,752 34,785,418 -
- two years later 47,164,447 27,956,714 35,704,995 - -
- three years later 47,200,484 27,957,409 - - -
~four years later 47,200,484 - - - -
Estimate of cumulative claims 47,200,484 27,957,409 35,704,995 34,785,418 55,799,189 201,447,495
Cumulative payments to date (47,200,484) (27,957,409) (35,441,042) (25,788,185) (7,691,853) (144,078,973)
Net outstanding claims liabilities - - 263,953 8,997,233 48,107,336 57,368,522

32



Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation Annual Report 2015 - 16

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Gross of reinsurance - 2015
Underwriting year

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Total
$) $) $) $) $) $)
Estimate of cumulative claims
At end of underwriting year 86,823,507 118,947,377 87,640,223 80,779,699 72,539,766
— one year later 41,676,097 91,483,339 58,197,448 72,975,911 =
—two years later 31,359,252 85,753,540 50,830,389 = =
— three years later 31,189,425 85,819,062 - - -
~ four years later 31,291,918 = = = =
Estimate of cumulative claims 31,291,918 85,819,062 50,830,389 72,975,911 72,539,766 313,457,046
Cumulative payments to date (31,291,918) (85,819,062) (50,830,389) (58,860,892) (14,726,077) (241,528,338)
Gross outstanding claims liabilities - - - 14,115,019 57,813,689 71,928,708

Net of reinsurance - 2015
Underwriting year

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Total
%) $) $) $) $) )
Estimate of cumulative claims
At end of underwriting year 49.102,932 66,658,558 49,372,123 45,463,835 44,002,529
- one year later 23,101,855 50,428,337 32,188,596 40,361,752 -
— two years later 17,247,590 47,164,447 27,956,714 - -
— three years later 17,154,184 47,200,484 = - =
—four years later 17,210,555 - - - -
Estimate of cumulative claims 17,210,555 47,200,484 27,956,714 40,361,752 44,002,529 176,732,034
Cumulative payments to date (17,210,555) (47,200,484) (27,956,714) (32,373,491) (8,099,342 (132,840,586)
Net outstanding claims liabilities - - = 7,988,261 35,903,187 43,891,448
15 Unearned premiums
Reinsurers’
Gross share Net
©) ©) $)
Balance at 1 April 2015 18,863,000 (8,177,000) 10,686,000
Premiums written during the year 257,444,015 (128,425,000) 129,019,015
Premiums earned during the year (255,901,015) 126,195,000 (129,706,015)
Balance at 31 March 2016 20,406,000 (10,407,000) 9,999,000
Balance at 1 April 2014 20,599,000 (8,108,000) 12,491,000
Premiums written during the year 283,562,873 (122,077,219) 161,485,654
Premiums earned during the year (285,298,873) 122,008,219 (163,290,654)
Balance at 31 March 2015 18,863,000 (8,177,000) 10,686,000

Note: All of the unearned premiums of $9,999,000 (2015: $10,686,000) are expected to be earned within one year.
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16 Net investment income

2016 2015
(%) ®)
Investment income:
Interest on bonds 23,637,484 20,529,060
Interest on deposits 920,941 2,534,669
Net realised (loss)/gain on disposal of available-for-sale securities (12,759,015) 24,813,366
Impairment loss (11,421,941) (3,044,764)
Net exchange (loss)/gain (4,369,296) 2,311,324
Dividend income 13,636,126 15,183,915
Sundry income 341,420 200,999
9,985,719 62,528,569
Less: Investment expenses:
Fund management fees 5,624,893 5,423,550
Sundry expenses 772,714 639,090
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 6,397,607 6062640
Net investment income 3,588,112 56,465,929

Note: Included in the net realised loss/(gain) on disposal of available-for-sale securities is an amount of $16,029,500

(2015: $36,857,227) released from the fair value reserve.

17 Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits maturing in more than

three months

2016 2015

($) $)

Cash at bank and in hand 34,498,499 5,991,070
Deposits with original maturity within 3 months 30,000,000 57,086,966
Cash and cash equivalents 64,498,499 63,078,036

The effective interest rates for cash and cash equivalents ranged from 0% to 0.36% (2015: 0% to 4.40%).

2016 2015

($) @)

Deposits with original maturity in more than 3 months 40,000,000 -

The effective interest rates for bank deposits maturing in more than three months ranged from 0.63% to 0.74%.
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18 Notes to cash flow statement

(a) Investment income:

2016 2015
($) $
Interest on bonds (23,637,484) (20,529,060)
Interest on deposits (920,941) (2,534,669)
Net realised loss/(gain) on disposal of available-for-sale securities 12,759,015 (24,813,366)
Impairment loss 11,421,941 3,044,764
Net exchange loss/(gain) 4,369,296 (2,311,324)
Dividend income (13,636,126) (15,183,915)
Sundry income (341,420) (200,999)
(9,985,719) (62,528,569)

Investment expenses:
Fund management fees 5,624,893 5,423,550
Sundry expenses 772,714 639,090
6,397,607 6,062,640
Net investment income (3,588,112) (56,465,929)

(b) Fund injection to existing fund managers

2016 2015
(%) %)
Purchase of securities (1,258,211,202) (1,264,411,991)
Proceeds from sale or maturity of securities 1,267,441,111 970,030,102
(Increase)/decrease in deposits with fund managers (9,229,909) 174,381,889
Fund injection to fund managers - (120,000,000)

19 Taxation

The results of the Corporation are not subject to taxation by virtue of section 27 of the Hong Kong
Export Credit Insurance Corporation Ordinance (Chapter 1115).

20 Commitments

The Corporation does not have any outstanding capital commitment as at 31 March 2016
(2015: $992,936).
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21 Maximum liability
The maximum liability of the Corporation in respect of the policies in force as at 31 March 2016
amounted to $35,594,090,000 (2015: $33,730,085,900). The maximum liability the Corporation is
permitted to undertake as determined by the Legislative Council under section 23 of the Hong Kong
Export Credit Insurance Corporation Ordinance (Chapter 1115) at 31 March 2016 is $40,000,000,000
(2015: $40,000,000,000).

22 Material related party transactions

The Corporation entered into the following material related party transactions:

Key management personnel remuneration

2016 2015

($) )

Short-term employee benefits 8,008,741 8,248,000
Post-employment benefits 995,804 941,095
9,004,545 9,189,095

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 8).

23 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and interpretations
i\shsueﬁ Iéog:cl got yet effective for the annual accounting year ended 31
arc

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a few amendments and a
new standard which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2016 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. These include the following which may be relevant to the
Corporation.

Effective for

accounting

periods beginning

on or after

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle 1 January 2016

Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure initiative 1 January 2016
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38,

Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation 1 January 2016

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018

The Corporation is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the Corporation’s financial statements.
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Section 28(1) of the Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation Ordinance, Chapter 1115 of the
Laws of Hong Kong, requires the Corporation to furnish to the Hong Kong Chief Executive within a
period of six months after the end of each financial year a report of its operations during that financial
year, together with the audited financial statements in respect of the year. In accordance with this
requirement, this report on the Corporation’s operations and financial results for 2015-16 has been
submitted to the Chief Executive, the Honourable CY Leung.

Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation

2/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road, Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone (852) 2732 9988
Facsimile : (852) 2722 6277
E-mail : info@hkecic.com

Website : www.hkecic.com
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M3 A31H 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
REEZE 3,447 3,600 3,543 3,504 3,276
REZSAEERE 35,594 33,730 33,355 31,274 25,374
RARFETS 110,484 111,570 102,004 96,496 87,714
RELUA (BA) 257.44 283.56 277 .46 285.32 276.00
REE4E 76.35 57.54 4575 51.22 65.65
RS R ER R AR 4.92 6.84 9.72 10.48 7.52
Z2REH 102.07 98.24 90.09 83.34 78.32
HARKA 56.55 96.93 108.16 128.22 101.56
wERA 3.59 56.46 58.77 66.46 14.45
St Al 60.14 153.39 166.93 194.68 116.01
BEFE 2,141.48 211595 1,957.83  1,799.67  1,623.49
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BREBGEETER 13 39,165,154 28,037,260
[RE|HA B BB B =8 A B HARSR1 T TN 17 40,000,000 -
BERREEHEY 17 64,498,499 63,078,036
HEE 2,293,711,777 2,257,037,484
EmRkBaE
ERRFEE
=N 5 - =
SEFEREES 6 1,551,768,000 1,584,590,000
ERBEFEES 6 101,265,693 96,975,411
NEEERES 6 42,180,322 76,794,080
1REB = F| 446,263,021 357,590,795
REERRGE 2,141,477,036 2,115,950,286
=L
EE(ETELE 13 96,533,676 71,928,708
IR B K ELA RS 3R 12 35,295,065 50,295,490
REBEERRE 15 20,406,000 18,863,000
mefw’ 152,234,741 141,087,198
EmRkaERsE 2,293,711,777 2,257,037,484
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2016 2015
B 5T ($) $)

WA 7 257,444,015 283,562,873
BRERRE (128,425,000) (122,077,219)
129,019,015 161,485,654

REBEERERE R D 687,000 1,805,000
BERAFBREELA 129,706,015 163,290,654
FIRE WA 16 3,588,112 56,465,929
BREMS 67,333,981 61,613,116
RERRTSE 761,775 996,425
HEWE - BE K&E (E8), ks (47,831) 50,000
FETEUA 92,170 219,326
A 71,728,207 119,344,796
B BEEeE 13 76,346,681 57,540,156
BREMEDE 13 (34,420,665) (22,777,412)
,,,,,,, R s926,016 34,762,744
B R IR R (4,916,561) (6,842,170)
BIREMMEHDE 2,212,452 3,078,977
,,,,,,, BAERESE (2704109 | (3763193
,,,,,,, BEtegEE s 39,221,907 30,999,551
77777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 162,212,315 251,635,899
B EEAK 8 57,714,752 58,269,971
R RER 12,656,615 12,045,700
BERBER 4,050,277 4,695,512

e 9 7,701,065 5,844,797
WRARER 8,043,868 7,225,827
EGERMY 11,888,887 10,159,355
ZIR)EH 16,343 -
,,,,,,, BERA 102,071,807 || 98,241,162
REERF 60,140,508 153,394,737
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2016 2015
($) ()

a2 60,140,508 153,394,737
REEHMEESWE
TSRS
AR DB EEas kB
FERNERH AT EBEES (30,006,199) 38,535,284
B EREERRNEEE
- BIEEE 11,421,941 3,044,764
- BEERFKE (16,029,500) (36,857,227)
RAFEAMES IaRAN A TRERESSS¥S) (34,613,758) 4,722,821
REEGZEWNSBE 25,526,750 158,117,558
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NEEE DRk

s REe FRKEHES R H kS

) % % ) %

20155481848 76,794,080  1,584,590,000 96,975,411 357,590,795  2,115,950,286

FEHF - - - 60,140,508 60,140,508
Hibsr bW (34,613,758) - - - (34,613,758)

e Wi (34,613,758) - - 60,140,508 25,526,750
B aREsy - - (328220000 4290282 28531718 -

201653 31 B&& 42,180,322  1,551,768,000 101,265,693 446,263,021  2,141,477,036
2014F471RKHB - 72071259 1464280000 88861010 332620459 1,957,832,728

FEHEH = = = = 153,394,737 153,394,737

HAbar W = 4,722,821 = = = 4,722,821

ire W e = 4,722,821 = = 153,394,737 158,117,558
Ba/REEN - - 120310000 8114401 | (128424400 -

201553 A31 B&#H = 76,794,080 1,584,590,000 96,975,411 357,590,795 2,115,950,286
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2016 2015
Bt ($) $)
SRR
ANE i A 60,140,508 153,394,737
FAEIEE
FILE WA 18 (3,588,112) (56,465,929)
ASEREE (5,624,893) (5,423,550)
e 9 7,701,065 5,844,797
R )E 8 16,343 -
HEME - BE LEEEER (k) 47,831 (50,000)
CEESRBAINCEEE 58,692,742 97,300,055
1R & E A e Uk IR (38 hn), R A (1,726,673) 2,912,230
BREBGARDBETREZLM (2,230,000) (69,000)
BREEGEETERGEM),md (11,127,894) 6,162,101
1R R E A BT 5B (R A ) 3 hn (15,000,425) 10,447,249
gEEERE M, O ) 24,604,968 (6,769,872)
KREEETRBEL I, CRd) 1,543,000 (1,736,000
sgrEBRenRe®® 54,755,718 108,246,763
REEH
T BT R (205,090,470) (10,000,000)
B T BB R 165,090,470 14,000,000
FIRAHS KR TE 18 - (120,000,000)
BEYE - BE KK 9 (13,713,314) (7,808,496)
HEYE  BEMRESERIE 5,000 50,000
SRIREE IR INN 122,687 1,845,049
REFTEF B KA F| 49,373 3,780
ENFERI R X 200,999 299,934
RAZHMANRSFSR 0 (53,335,255) (121,609,733)
RERRESSEYEM (R ) FE 1,420,463 (13,362,970)
ENRERESEEY 17 63,078,036 76,441,006
ERBELRRESEEY 64,498,499 63,078,036
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FEGMASERNRARAGHHEEREMNE TREFTT LI EN(EER B RELER]) -
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ABEARFAERMRASTHEARERNFER KRR - RAFIEHET(FBHHERELER) A
TEBEBLT

(BBBI 53R & £ B ) F B 243 2010-2012 AT K% 2011-2013 IR
ZM AN EELE R NIEERRETCEABENEE] - HR - (BEB2F%8ER) % 24 5% 5
AT ZHEECEITANBABBALTNTSE  AREHTETRIEHTIEEE A BRE T ZER
R KEHEERHEEERRETEEEAERGHCIENSHE  AARTEENHEESR
BIEHIZETEABRS  ZBFTEHAYBRRIBEMFE -

REEX

(i) BXPHE
1 15 KA E NEE B (RREF) HIRPHEMESAEINTE - MARBEBEOEIK
BZRFPHEARBRARYFAEREZRFIXEMIEA  ZFANBERRREL - R
BB B 5 E R LASMNY LR © IRBR B KO IR RI R B 0 A TS LR -

AREMBERRRENRRRALN  URB(BEEMBREEADFIN - REEAIHE
AR o

(i) BHRIRHER KGTE
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(e) W% MERRME
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Y%~ BB MERER B FIN R P IR AR R AT E SORE R 1R (B2 M 1(h) JIk 15 ~ &
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— HEEERE 54
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— A= 34
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(n) =R
()  1REREBUA
BFRARBRBRE N E 2 2T BURFIB T EE 1(d)(ii)
(i) BREMZ
BREASBEARBRAREIIREANSNAESLERVBFELZERTETNRKEEBRER
AR °

(i) AEEHA
FE TR E YRR B UL A A IR SR BN R IE B A ) e S B ERRAVER o

EAERENBRERANMRE RERSRERAR -

(iv) FUEHKA
MEWAABRRFBIER EERFEBAR °

(o) EERF
() EHeREFEBHELABEEREEERTHEZAAR -

(i)  FREHRFKEARABWHEFEL - BREREEECRBIEATE BRI R E B AR -
ORELRERERERARFAX -

Eat et & H E

RB(EBVBRELADGRZENBRER - ERERELMATRER  MZEMEFTRERAZE
HEMHEREAHMBREEELAERELBERMAYLFEMREWARMASEE - BEEIEER
EAMEHRE MR RREZEGF RRR - EERERIEHINEEG - ARNEBREFT 21
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MR EWE

(BB RIRERRSN - AT RENL)

AHHEESNBERE
B HEEESFNATLEEARERABRIERBENRTETUE AR AEREFETRE - AR
HMEANFLEERIRABEA TRE RS EBERERNER BN A P ZE %+ B AE - Ata@ar
S Ek A EZ A ER M E -
3 RERMKERER
KBEE—REFBEP BAERR M FRERR - A MZERRMABDERRRAFE -
(a) fRBE R
REAYNT S R RBIEA AN IREAURF I BT ETREELTE - AT EEE
AR N R SR RS B IR (R B o
K BEVRRR ZE15H MK B T EEA T RE R
() EREAR —ENEENMEE HBRKEEY

()  BIRERR — IMEZEFISKIEE - ADBRBOE - EVWEAD  TEREEIME  BF - Fap
BB RRA -

HERERERARE AREREHEEMARE  EHRHERNEELRRRNRLE - HR
BRER - ARE DR ZRTSOEERBOGMKR - AEBERHER]ARIES] -

HRAARZEZFEOXRBHOZREDS  WARRREIEETEREMTSNERAR - REE

MR ENTREFLOT -
2016 2015

ZIRE M2 REEE ZIRE IR 4EEE

(BB8x) BAE (A&t AoX

ESE 38,486 34.8 42,757 38.3
FR A 20,896 18.9 16,803 15.1
HEH 9,746 8.8 10,219 9.2
== 3,920 3.6 4,237 3.8
st 3,074 2.8 2,435 2.2
H s 34,362 31.1 35,119 31.4
XIRMRER 110,484 100.0 111,570 100.0
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TRARR B
KERFERRIE DS KAGENAESDERR  BRELEROTHEEHE  WHEERE  TEL
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BRI RS
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EXNMAGERLENER  EHRFAESFHERMNR
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(i)

EERR
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T2EERRREEMEKIE - &5  RITEREBRBEEMELNEAR

— RERAEMENRTE
BHREREZARPFERZEFHE  AEABNEERRL TEF - BEIREHKIARE
BEAOIRERRES14BREE - ARBHEMHREMRENRPEFRERE - BBE
T 8RES AR E S5 - ARERHT AT EHER R TR R RERE

— EF
BEHE—RERRSRBEVEALRREETARBA T EETRNES - AFEHE
BEFEBENEERE  ARRATESCIEEAIREMIMEEL R AAEEFFHK(2015 :
[AA] S E)BIES K TA-] skA EEEFIRMBUTES (2015 : TA-] A L) » kA&
MRBETRNES KRBT ES
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(BRrRIRERRSN - AT RENL)

— ARBREE
BREBREEFANGERR - AREE(EPEIE) R EETAMENTHR LT
BEEe %&%%ﬁﬁu&$%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ&x%%% x%ﬁ%ﬁ tERE MERRFTHE
EARIAEEEERAR - 2016 FRARBI U HBZNBRENZELREETAEE
[A-] A E (20154 : [A-] BRBAE) »

() BeRBEER
RBESERHREEREENENIBES+HES - ABMKE LT HERREE RN
FEE LR BRASS R MRS R A SR A BB R 25 R E B
ELEE o

TERFAIREE BRI M ERE

M3A31H RITBREH

IR EE BE&MAARE 1 FRsIZ B
©) () $)

M2016%E3H31H
REIES 22,906,006 22,906,006 22,906,006
FETBRE R 2,928,258 2,928,258 2,928,258
HEMERS &Vﬁ%% 9,460,801 9,460,801 9,460,801
35,295,065 35,295,065 35,295,065

M2015%3H31H
REZE 24,100,479 24,100,479 24,100,479
& BRE FE 14,912,145 14,912,145 14,912,145
HEMENREESTER 11,282,866 11,282,866 11,282,866
50,295,490 50,295,490 50,295,490

(iii) Tl @ fr
ﬂ%@@%ﬂ?&@ﬁgﬁ$%ﬁiﬁ SRR - AEMFIREREBERNIREHRS KIR
TR - WEHE KBTI FEANEEANERF R R ERBHA SN BEREMTTI0KR17 -
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KRREEMENES RIBITREFRNEE BETHRREST - AXRBNTE (BRRFE
Hts 2RI AE)FINT

2016 2015
HHEANRRE HHMRER $aF RIREB HE AR
F=EF(TH) pryllink-Zd BoHNgE pegallof A" oML
(%) (BBx) (BB8x) (BBL) (BE&L)
e AR EFH 0.5 - (17.70) - (13.45)
(0.5) - 17.70 - 13.45
RITIR ST 0.5 0.35 - 0.29 -
(0.5) (0.35) - (0.29) -
(iv) HARZE1E )R B
AEEEREATHEERABLFARENEREERR - AR EERAFSHABENBRAERR
b ARRTESECENEFIREGREASRENTSBIBI0%  WEAIKERKEHRE &
BREMEERNFSME °
TRETABIFEAFEERBET SRS EBERS MEEREENBMNOTE (REE
Hi 2 HRETE) -
2016 2015
ik 2t VC) HESHNTE HRERH 2
(%) (BBx) (B&T)
BHEMIHEE 10.0 49.74 59.63
(10.0) (49.74) (59.63)
v) FEE
wAFEETEN R TA
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B ERE MY
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— F=ER(ZEER)  BBMAERTHNATEE  HEMRANEIZSH LTS
BRERAEENT AR -

ABRSMENRECETATFEENRERE - HEXERTANTHALTNER 2 FEE
METERIRAGBETE - KB HETDEARFAABEENTSEE  AEETE A FEENA]
SMRS - A BETERTANMGEDNEAZER —RAZEEAM A BRAOTISEIE o
HRZELANAFEEAERAREZENRIBAE - REBRT  [TABRINEER
BRARLVIRAENMSEEAIANEEATRZELNRE - AME—RBERAT - EX
PRETRRAEMSEEAIBEEE AT EENER (FINAIERELEIE) < bt - 2FE
BEEGEITNFERERYERTARFEEEREFELRERENZE - At - BET
ABRRN2BEMSENTREE —REFTREAFEERNF BN EETEEE -

2016
E—BR E_BR BE=EBR Pk
($) ($) ($) ($)
BE

AEHERES
il 1,226,081,074 548,511,239 - 1,774,592,313
i) 92,360,022 72,600,880 - 164,960,902
REBINES L) - (5,635,033) - (5,635,033)
EESEENER 158,012,666 - - 158,012,666
1,476,453,762 615,477,086 - 2,091,930,848

2015
F—ER F_EMR FE=ER FEE]
%) % &) )
BE

AEHEES
-k 1,680,351,521 121,709,147 1,244,220 1,803,304,888
-FEm 100,223,195 68,394,988 = 168,618,183
EEINER L = 3,880,726 = 3,880,726
EESEENTR 141,066,275 = = 141,066,275
1,921,640,991 193,984,861 1,244,220 2,116,870,072

ANRGEN  SRERRSITHENREBHE TF - 2B 5323,524,902 Tl HEFHR
2016 F A 2015 FHE —EBARKEZ R E — 4K (2015 : 157,630,083 7L H 2014 FHYE — B A1
BRINE—EBR) - AEHNBRENEEH B AT EERBLR 2 BNEBER -
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EBHOFARKRE 2015-16FF

MRS M

(BRERIRERRSN - AT RENL)

F_BRNFEESEBAHETERZEH
F_EANAHEEESFLERINESON R TFEERKBEENERRAKESKIEFHEN
E=NEEBEHAEN2HMETE -

BHE=BRATEENEEN
FENE=BRATBEHEZZHNT

2016 2015
($) $)

At ER S
R4aA18 1,244,220 -
A - 1,341,459
FEARGE BMERARZ REREIR (623,000) (97,239)
WEBRE—ER (621,220) -
MW3A3H - 1,244,220

FENAFAREREN DB REBIaEE - -
REEBRRB 2 BEMCH AFEERR 2 WaskEiEAE - -

—IRH KR AB1E 1,244,220 TV AT HEEF R 2015 FEFRME B D BE=BR - HRRZE
B MG ERAVEERBBZESFFERANERE EREMELETHEEMETE © &%&
HFMR2016FER - IRE QA FEEEEERTSTHERESH T ARKHBNRENRAE

ZAEHF N 2016 FHRBBHE B -
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TSRS M

(BRrRIRERRSN - AT RENL)

(vi) SMNEJE fz
HZE2016F K 2015F3A31H ' ABRUINESHERN SR EE D B4 A85.0% &% 81.3% °

TREFREEARBEREA  REE M S A0z 780 [E = & 12 B A28 B il 22 A /OB

B 48R
KT E -

2016

HRRRRE HH o
ERKE B E DR

B (B8x) (%) (%) (BE) (BB8x)
BT 63.80 3.0 10.0 0.36 6.02
(10.0) (0.36) (6.02)
A E 59.85 2.8 7.0 - 4.18
(7.0 - (4.18)

AR #& 28.93 1.3 3.0 0.87

(3.0 (0.87)
B 19.50 0.9 6.0 0.02 1.15
(6.0) (0.02) (1.15)
ez 18.77 0.9 4.0 - 0.75
(4.0) - (0.75)
SR 5.23 0.2 14.0 0.53 0.20
(14.0) (0.53) (0.20)

2015

i MR E HE A
& &5 &) perall:0)- 2= N2
B (&) (%) (%) (B&ET) (B&7m)
AR 197.06 9.1 1.0 1.97 -
(1.0) (1.97) -
TNEY - TREETEARE 66.48 3.1 8.0 (0.83) 6.07
(8.0) 0.83 (6.07)
BT 54.29 2.5 8.0 0.74) 5.09
(8.0) 0.74 (5.09)
B 48.37 2.2 1.0 0.01 0.48
(1.0) 0.01) (0.48)
SR 14.25 0.7 6.0 0.15 0.71
(6.0) (0.15) .71
N 12.85 0.6 3.0 = 0.39
(3.0) = (0.39)
EXRT 0.14 0.0 7.0 0.01 -
(7.0) (0.01) _
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MRS M

(BRERIRERRSN - AT RENL)

EEERABBETLEARBHOINERBRTA o 1IN RBIFEILRINESH - LEHE
FUIINE(EEREBUT BT RARK) REBBEMAIKRE - R2016F3A31 8 * ABFIALH
REIMNES XA TEBEETE AR S5,6350337C (20154 ¢ 1E3,880,7267T) © KB REINES L
WEESNSRIREEIHNT :

2016 2015

(BB8x) (&)

EITRBINES K 56.55 53.90
NeXTERIBINES L - 3.06
BT R HIMNE S 4 63.48 74.81
HERHINES 4T - 9.51
TN TR BAIMNE S 4T - 23.11
ARBREBINES 4 17.56 =

4 REZBEER

REBFERRDBEBEEERLEERERFENBT IO EREVRFEERFFERRRTHKEDHD
BAEGE -E—REBELT  FARRGREMESTFE - BEFHALLEURBN [ FEIGFEREEE
ERESLEZHMETE L + flihBornhuetter-Ferguson I /ABE BT FHILL R R R G - UEEHETTH
B ZABEEFRBEFE—ETE -

ABEHEE  AXNBEENERE RS AMURRREPECFEETEIRRIEINS% BN REE
SFEH SR 4,110,000 7T (20154 : 2,950,0007T) °

5 BXR
KBR2012E5 AAEAERBEMFEREVIEN 20008 T - B Z20165E3 8310 » KRB KAKHE
%8 5 01184,148 8 7T (20154 : 2118 1,595 8 7T) °

ABREEATRHAOBRAE D ERRRRY - REHOBEREXBOA FHM ALK BN R -
femeB k< HhOES

EEREANGFEHIE  AEBEEZRMILRRAOMAERBROTIEER  BEEARMTHAR (R
BIfSEES) ° N - RBEAEARNESARRER RS TSEARTARERAREC(EE L OERR
BBIEGD(EEEHFINSE) BB HEERNZEZERSARR(DEAERSAEH]) - ARBRBEANER
REGDEBEFEMER o
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TSRS M

(BRrRIRERRSN - AT RENL)

6 RESHEEMEH
(a) ESFEFBERFREBFHEE

ARAATKHES  AEMN(EBL D ERRRBIGH) (FREPIFI15E)F 12Q) KFAFINE
£ BREMARFAEREERERREMBBLHEERENKBRE - 1 ARSREELS
FIREFIAE [FRR ] BHEZA  UENEEERIKRERAHBERTNHRE - BIE LAMER

BORAED RN (B FEE RS & [ERREES | FRERAWE -
Itk % {5 <2 1O 58 B O AR B 08 7R ] B R R I AR B A A K

(b) AP EERZEE

AFEERBEZEERMBARREERNHAAHOEESAFEEN R EEHFE - WIRR

PR 1) PO & SHERSR BRI ©
7 WA
AR EEEH IR OEARR -
g \JEAR I B R RSB R TIREIMRIB B AR (BRI MREN) -
8 EEMAE

2016 2015

($) $)

He o TEREMEF 53,502,490 54,084,339
FUE S ERET 8 B X 4,212,262 4,185,632
57,714,752 58,269,971
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EBHOFARKRE 2015-16FF

MRS M

(BRERIRERRSN - AT RENL)

9 WX BERRHE

BIEERHAE PEREEZN
TH RAEF HERE B R RE K AR k)
$) $) $) $) $) $)
B
201544 A1 B#Es 26,100,000 9,837,094 50,980,071 449,925 2,584,596 89,951,686
b i - 11,029,469 2,453,162 - 230,683 13,713,314
k=4 - (7,070,940) (4,849,308) - (1,050,445) (12,970,693)
201643 531 B&E% 26,100,000 13,795,623 48,583,925 449,925 1,764,834 90,694,307
R2iHTE -
201544 A1 B#E# 21,532,500 8,176,812 45,960,582 149,975 2,289,074 78,108,943
REEHE 652,500 2,693,513 4,005,953 149,975 199,124 7,701,065
SR D - (7,023,650) (4,849,308) - (1,044,904) (12,917,862)
2016F3A31 AEEE 22,185,000 3,846,675 45,117,227 . 299,950 1,443,294 72,892,146
R T F B
201643831 H 3,915,000 9,948,948 3,466,698 149,975 321,540 17,802,161
B
201444 A1 B#EsA 26,100,000 8,674,050 45,844,741 363,800 2,560,736 83,543,327
)i = 1,804,291 5,493,730 449,925 60,550 7,808,496
k=4 = (641,247) (358,400) (363,800) (36,690) (1,400,137)
201543 A 31 B#E44 26,100,000 9,837,094 50,980,071 449,925 2,584,596 89,951,686
R2iHTE
201444 A1 B#E# 20,880,000 8,213,618 42,066,333 363,800 2,140,532 73,664,283
REZHFE 652,500 604,441 4,252,649 149,975 185,232 5,844,797
= R ) = (641,247) (358,400) (363,800) (36,690) (1,400,137)
2015F3AAME 21,532,500 8176812 45960582 149975 2,289,074 78,108,943
I EHE
201543 A31H 4,567,500 1,660,282 5,019,489 299,950 295,522 11,842,743

M ARMERMECNER  WARMEEREA -

26



TSRS M

(BRrRIRERRSN - AT RENL)

EBHOFRARKRE

2015 - 1655

10 &E
2016 2015
BEFI= EEFIE=
(%) ($) (%) $)
(a) THHERS-BFF 0.16 - 4.86 0.17 -5.83
il
—EEE 124,522,098 179,100,681
— 158 1,198,771,626 1,028,157,084
1,323,293,724 1,207,257,765
JEET
—EBE 24,082,776 20,026,254
—1EE5h 140,878,126 148,591,929
164,960,902 168,618,183
(b) THIBEEES - BRAFSH
il
—EEB 150,861,702 232,152,603
— 18I 300,436,887 363,894,520
451,298,589 596,047,123
() EBF-IERHEHN (5,635,033) 3,880,726
(d) HEESLENER 0-1.47 158,012,666 0-2.30 141,066,275
g 2,091,930,848 2,116,870,072

R B EBEE RN K 1T

BEA BRI E - AAREEE

ENBERE  INERBANME

HEREHE  TEMBRRRANFREIIR » TREIKBEA LN EER SR T ARKREE

2016 2015
($) $)
Pk ]
STTHETREEE 239,784 4,198,810
PTETEAE (5,874,817) (318,084)
ERBRAR2FINFE
METHE(BE) BE (5,635,033) 3,880,726
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EBHOFARKRE 2015-16FF

==
W& R = MY
(BRAFRIZEERSN - LABTTRER)
TRENSERBWANTHEE, (BB MENECEHXEHAE (BRREAH) °
—ERx —EWE MERE HBBRE Pk )
($) ($) ($) ($) ($)
AIHEERE-ES 344,838,428 253,687,276 746,228,940 143,499,982 1,488,254,626
B - INERIAL (5,635,033) - - - (5,635,033)
EESRIENER 158,012,666 - - - 158,012,666
201643831 H 497,216,061 253,687,276 746,228,940 143,499,982  1,640,632,259
SRAEBNENEBNB L :
GRE)/FA
IR EE HEHARE —@BAR —Z={@A =ERE—%
($) ($) ($) ($) ($)
PTHEAaE (5,635,033) - - - -
& - (155,041,450) (78,824,345) (76,217,105) -
MALHE - 149,406,417 77,579,205 71,827,212 -
201653 A31H (5,635,033) (5,635,033) (1,245,140) (4,389,893) -
—FR —EWF MERF HBARF k)
$) ) ©) (©) $)
AHHEES - &S 444,815,649 331,266,616 511,611,816 88,181,847 1,375,875,948
5 - INERIELD 3,880,726 = = = 3,880,726
EESEENTER 141,066,275 = = = 141,066,275
201543 H31H 589,762,650 331,266,616 511,611,816 88,181,867 1,520,822,949
SHMEENSNEHA I :
GRHE)/mA
IR EE A{E4R%E —@AR —=={EA —EARAE—%F
$) ) ©) (©) $)
PTEBE 3,880,726 = - - -
mtE%E = (177,456,483) (67,263,421) (110,193,062) -
AT = 181,337,209 67,719,954 113,617,255 -
201543 A 31 H 3,880,726 3,880,726 456,533 3,424,193 -
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(BRrRIRERRSN - AT RENL)

11 fRB R EAtb B WRIR

2016 2015
($) $)
FEUARBR TR 19,179,412 18,102,265
H U R TR 2,701,866 2,068,683
FEUF B R AR B 8,026,837 8,861,425
29,908,115 29,032,373

T8 HA A5 U 3 59 4R B % HL i FE UK
R—FALKE 29,339,462 28,747,520
B —F R E 568,653 284,853
29,908,115 29,032,373

ARBAE R B B EL At B L R TH
FE W IR R B 3% HIR B B BIRERT 14 B ARIE - ARERBEREMFBHE N 30))

BRI BB H TR SERENRBRRFIREITT

2016 2015

($) $)

RiBEAS AR E 14,065,160 13,127,483
BEAVR=ERERRE 5,114,252 4,974,782
19,179,412 18,102,265

RIBEISARE A UG IS RO Y BIE RO R LIRS
EEMERRENBRRIEEARA RIFLCENZEEBLRE - RBBELR  EEEMRE  aRER

BRURBLEBTAZY  SUHRBNRAA28NE - BARZFHRBIELRERE - XEZFHAL
B R AT A e
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(BRERIRERRSN - AT RENL)

12 fRBa R HAbfE A FROR

2016 2015
($) $)
REZE 22,906,006 24,100,479
BT BIRE IR 2,928,258 14,912,145
HipEt s R EFE R 9,460,801 11,282,866
35,295,065 50,295,490
FEHEEENRRE EMENR
R—F AR 12,568,559 26,498,311
BE—Fn 22,726,506 23,797,179
35,295,065 50,295,490
NABEBZEZEEFNEBEHEBERSCELF BN FEFE  AABEEEENSEEE  »EBRED
BRERE  FAe BEXHEAEZRBEHEREE  WEFBEARRIRAFEEIIR -
TREBIEBEA LN ERERem T AEMKREE :
2016 2015
($) $)
Pt ]
BE (R R E M EIGIE
— FEW BRI & B 38,070,542 53,782,189
A& R REMEMNFIE
— FER BRERE B (40,998,800) (68,694,334)
ERBRAR2FINEE
A& R REMERMNFIE (2,928,258) (14,912,145)

13 BEETER

wEE BRERED SRER

©) ©) $)
MA2015%F481H
BEEREER 11,928,708 (5,379,760) 6,548,948
RIEERFETER 60,000,000 (22,657,500) 37,342,500

71,928,708 (28,037,260) 43,891,448
REFRER (51,741,713) 23,292,771 (28,448,942)
AEEREEEEE 76,346,681 (34,420,665) 41,926,016
MN201653 8311 96,533,676 (39,165,154) 57,368,522
BEERETER 34,737,407 (15,631,833) 19,105,574
REREBETER 61,796,269 (23,533,321) 38,262,948
96,533,676 (39,165,154) 57,368,522
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EBHOFARKRE 2015-16F3F

2016 2015
($) $)

(a) CEBREHEER
481 B38iRE5E 11,928,708 24,698,580
WIERR P AR (10,234,565) (18,036,536)
1,694,143 6,662,044
B[Ol FE IR (1,214,229) (6,662,044)
479,914 -
e REEE(ETER 13,153,246 4,115,020
13,633,160 4,115,020
RNEETER 21,104,247 7,813,688
3 A 31 BERERE (A) 34,737,407 11,928,708
BR&E PTG E(B) (15,631,833) (5,379,760)
3 A31 BERFRE(C) 19,105,574 6,548,948

(b) REFEEETAR
451 B7EIREE 60,000,000 54,000,000
WIERR P AR IR (27,520,698) (31,376,142)
32,479,302 22,623,858
B[Ol FE R (16,529,787) (8,508,838)
15,949,515 14,115,020
A\ B R ETRR (13,153,246) (4,115,020)
2,796,269 10,000,000
RNEETER 59,000,000 50,000,000
3 A 31 HfERE%E (D) 61,796,269 60,000,000
BR&EFTEHEE) (23,533,321) (22,657,500)
3A31 AFERFEF) 38,262,948 37,342,500
() 3HA31HTEREZE(A) + (D) 96,533,676 71,928,708
(d) BREFGDELLEEB) + (E) (39,165,154) (28,037,260)
() 3H31BFEELFHEC) +(F) 57,368,522 43,891,448

( FEHR-—FEREENTBREE

TBIR A 32,568,050 33,425,998
BREMEHDE (14,430,623) (13,691,699)
TEHR —F & A BETERFE 18,137,427 19,734,299

31



EBHOFARKRE 2015-16FF

MRS M

(BB RIERRSM -

LA TR ENL)

14 BREZRREDH

BREATAE - 2016

AREE
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Fohy
($) ($) ) ($) ($) ($)
fHET RETEE
RERFEFER 118,947,377 87,640,223 80,779,699 72,539,766 94,089,434
——Fi% 91,483,339 58,197,448 72,975,911 62,853,489 -
—MFE 85,753,540 50,830,389 64,918,172 - -
—=F 85,819,062 50,831,652 - - -
—FE 85,819,062 - - - -
RS HE 85,819,062 50,831,652 64,918,172 62,853,489 94,089,434 358,511,809
ESEHYNEE (85,819,062)  (50,831,652)  (64,438,258)  (46,903,974) (13,985,187) (261,978,133)
REINEEEELE - - 479,914 15,949,515 80,104,247 96,533,676
BREBEZFE-2016
AREE
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Foey
($) ($) ($) (%) (%) ($)

fHET Rt E
REREEFER 66,658,558 49,372,123 45,463,835 44,002,529 55,799,189
——F1& 50,428,337 32,188,596 40,361,752 34,785,418 -
R 47,164,447 27,956,714 35,704,995 - -
— =% 47,200,484 27,957,409 - - -
—MFE 47,200,484 - - - -
RS 47,200,484 27,957,409 35,704,995 34,785,418 55,799,189 201,447,495
ESEHYNEE (47,200,484)  (27,957,409)  (35,441,042)  (25,788,185) (7,691,853) (144,078,973)
REXNEEEEFE - - 263,953 8,997,233 48,107,336 57,368,522
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BRRATEEE - 2015

EBHOFARKRE 2015-16F3F

EREE
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 MEt
) ©) %) % $ )
fhEt R i {E
RERF S F AR 86,823,507 118,947,377 87,640,223 80,779,699 72,539,766
——F& 41,676,097 91,483,339 58,197,448 72,975,911 -
—MF% 31,359,252 85,753,540 50,830,389 - -
—=F1% 31,189,425 85,819,062 - - -
—mE% 31,291,918 - _ _ _
eSS 31,291,918 85,819,062 50,830,389 72,975,911 72,539,766 313,457,046
ESRHYNEE (31,291,918)  (85,819,062)  (50,830,389)  (58,860,892)  (14,726,077)  (241,528,338)
RENEEEEEE = = = 14,115,019 57,813,689 71,928,708
BRE%ZFE-2015
AREE
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 PR
$ ©) ) % % )
fhat RS
RERF E F R 49,102,932 66,658,558 49,372,123 45,463,835 44,002,529
——F& 23,101,855 50,428,337 32,188,596 40,361,752 -
—ME% 17,247,590 47,164,447 27,956,714 - -
—ZF% 17,154,184 47,200,484 - - _
—NEE 17,210,555 - - - -
Rt 25 E 17,210,555 47,200,484 27,956,714 40,361,752 44,002,529 176,732,034
ESRFRNeHE (17,210,555)  (47,200,484)  (27,956,714)  (32,373,491) (8,099,342)  (132,840,586)
AXNEEEETE = = = 7,988,261 35,903,187 43,891,448
==
15 KBS ERIRE
BRE
4= Fribh & JHEE
©) $) $)
201544 A1 B#&# 18,863,000 (8,177,000) 10,686,000
FRERRBRE 257,444,015 (128,425,000) 129,019,015
EEREERBE (255,901,015) 126,195,000 (129,706,015)
201643 A 31 B&E% 20,406,000 (10,407,000) 9,999,000
2014464 A1 B 20,599,000 (8,108,000) 12,491,000
FNERIRRE 283,562,873 (122,077,219) 161,485,654
EEREETREBE (285,298,873) 122,008,219 (163,290,654)
2015463 A 31 B#E4 18,863,000 (8,177,000) 10,686,000

B AE : HE P —F AR R B BA & AR AR R B 3£ 9,999,000 7T (2015 4F : 10,686,000 7T) ©

33



EBHOFARKRE 2015-16FF

MRS M
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16 FREWA

2016 2015
($) $)
BEWA :
BEHA A 23,637,484 20,529,060
FaA A 920,941 2,534,669
HEAHRHEESMERE (BE), K (12,759,015) 24,813,366
BEEE (11,421,941) (3,044,764)
&3 (B518) Wk 558 (4,369,296) 2,311,324
f& B A 13,636,126 15,183,915
FEIEA 341,420 200,999
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 9.985719 62,528,569
W REXE
HEEEEE 5,624,893 5,423,550
HIET N 772,714 639,090
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 6,397,607 6,062,640
FRERA 3,588,112 56,465,929
Mist  HERMEREBHRERF (B58), Kese e THAFEERMESEH 2 16,029,500 7T (20154 : 36,857,227 7T) °
— A P Al =+
17 BERBRESEYRIPAZHR =@ A NRITER
2016 2015
($) $)
RITER KBS 34,498,499 5,991,070
[REIER B DR =18 A BER 30,000,000 57,086,966
RERREEEY 64,498,499 63,078,036
BENIREZEBYHERFRN T 0% ZE0.36% (20154 : 0% = 4.40%) °
2016 2015
($) $)
[RE|H H BB E =8 A /IR TFER 40,000,000 =

A SZN=EANRITEROERN KRN F0.63% £0.74% °

34



B ERE MY

(BRrRIRERRSN - AT RENL)

18 BEREBRMHE

EBHOFARKRE 2015-16F3F

(a) REWA :
2016 2015
($) $)
BEHF 8 (23,637,484) (20,529,060)
FRF B (920,941) (2,534,669)
HEMHEEEFMERFER (W) 12,759,015 (24,813,366)
REEE 11,421,941 3,044,764
P& 18 (Meas) 558 4,369,296 (2,311,324)
% S A (13,636,126) (15,183,915)
FETEUR A (341,420) (200,999)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (9.985,719)  (62,528,569)
BREXH
AEEEEE 5,624,893 5,423,550
HIEY 772,714 639,090
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 6,397,607 6,062,640
FREWRA (3,588,112) (56,465,929)
(b) IREEESKEITE
2016 2015
($) )
BB (1,258,211,202)  (1,264,411,991)
B EFE S E AR B R e 1,267,441,111 970,030,102
(), WA EE S IR TFER (9,229,909) 174,381,889
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